





BWHA ANNUAL REPORT

THE EIGHTY SEVENTH ANNUAL REPORT

OF BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC

OFFICE BEARERS FOR 2020

LIFE MEMBERS * Denotes Deceased

Mrs A Todd* - 1941	Miss J Clarke* - 1941	Mrs E T Dobbin AM MBE* - 1948
Mrs R Robinson AM MBE* - 1948	Mrs K Langan* – 1954	Miss W McMullin* - 1955
Miss L Mauchlan* - 1956	Miss N Mauchlan* - 1956	Mrs E Grealy* - 1958
Miss I Sim* - 1961	Mrs E McDougall OAM* - 1963	Mrs M Josiffe OAM* - 1963
Mrs F Crunkhorn* - 1964	Miss B Watson* - 1969	Miss S Otto - 1970
Mrs J Viertel OAM - 1972	Mrs F Wastell OAM - 1979	Mrs E Green* - 1980
Dr M Hughes OAM* - 1981	Miss H Scraggs OAM - 1982	Miss J Snarski* - 1983
Mrs J Tidey OAM - 1984	Mrs A Parkyn AM - 1985	Miss J Ellis – 1988
Mrs N Gordon OAM - 1989	Mrs L Thomas - 1990	Mrs J Mecklem – 1992
Mrs R Nix OAM - 1995	Mrs J Proctor* - 1999	Mrs M Chatfield – 2000
Mrs J Heron - 2001	Miss M Cockings* - 2002	Ms J Hadfield AM – 2008
Ms C Kann - 2009	Ms C Schomberg - 2010	Mrs E Brennand* – 2013
Mrs M Brodie* - 2014	Dr K Walduck - 2016	Ms S Fisher - 2019

LONG SERVICE AWARDS

* Denotes Deceased

June Ballantyne (10) - 1997	Bron Morris (10) - 2017	Judy Keen (15) – 2018		
Lesley Schoenwald (10) - 1997	Sandra Beirne (10) - 2018	Lyn Hill (15) – 2018		
Michele Arnold (10) - 1999	Karen Davis (10) - 2019	Anita Sikes (15) - 2019		
Val Bartlett (10) - 2003	Janene McCall (10) - 2018	Liz Lobb (15) - 2019		
Bev Broadfoot (10) - 2004	Denise Byrne* (15) - 1992	Tracey O'Connor (15) - 2019		
Liz O'Connor (10) - 2004 Denise Roberts (15) - 1992		Pam Patteson (15) - 2019		
Helen Allen (10) - 2005	Jack Manders * (15) - 1994	Sue Anderson (20) - 2019		
Helen Hill (10) - 2006	Nola Slade (15) - 2000	Di Brodie (20) - 2019		
Cathy Taylor (10) - 2008	Julene Grant (15) - 2003	Margaret Brown (20) – 2019		
Angela Coleman (10) - 2010	Rhonda Bentley (15) - 2010	Keith Tidey (20) – 2005		
Melda Dunning (10) - 2012	Lisa Maree Jones (15) - 2010	Nikki Taylor (20) – 2014		
Desley Mackay (10) - 2012	Robyn Sneddon (15) - 2011	Diana Young (20) – 2016		
Wendy Stephens (10) - 2012	Christine Blanchard (15) - 2015	Robyn Andersen (15) - 2018		
Ros Julien (10) - 2012	Petra Faas O'Meara (15) – 2016	Amanda Higgs (20) - 2018		
Pam Nitarski (10) – 2015	Alyson Aleksic (15) – 2016	Graham Wakefield (25) – 2008		
Elizabeth Palmer (10) – 2015	Lesley Bennett (15) – 2017	Keith Nix (25) – 2013		
Debbie Wark (10) - 2015	Kelli Robinson (15) – 2018	Sue Brough (25) – 2015		
Debbie Wark (10) - 2015	Kelli Robinson (15) – 2018	Sue Brough (25) – 2015		

PRESIDENT	VICE-PRESIDENT	TREASURER		
Karin Walduck	Christine Blanchard	Sonya Fisher		
	MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE			
Lesley Bennett	Bron Morris	Sue Reid		
Di Brodie	Kellie Roberts			
SPECIAL ADVISOR	TURF MATCH SECRETARY	JUDICIARY C'TEE		
Sue Andersen	Kellie Roberts	Margie Brown (Asc)		
GRADING C'TEE	GRASS MATCH SECRETARY	Wendy Nichols (Bul)		
TURF	Lesley Bennett	Sue Brough (Ccial)		
Di Brodie (C)	MASTERS MATCH SECRETARY	Amanda Higgs (Cdores)		
Jenny Heron	Sue Reid	Caroline Schomberg (Easts)		
Liz Lobb	UMPIRES & TECHNICAL C'TEE	Deb Gately (KW)		
GRADING C'TEE	Naomi Crase	Courtney Gillot (Logan)		
GRASS	Sonya Fisher (C)	Bron Morris (Nths)		
Lesley Bennett (C)	Jenny Heron	Kylie Cassidy (PH)		
Margie Brown	Cheryl Kann	Marianne Graham (PR)		
Tracey O'Connor	Jasmin Kay	Petra O'Meara (QUT)		
Joan Walker	Caroline Schomberg	Anita Sikes (Red)		
COMPETITIONS C'TEE	Lyn Thomas	Julie Dunn (Sts)		
Turf	Naomi Zerner	Elizabeth Parker (SBE)		
Di Brodie (C)	SENIOR UMPIRE MENTORS	Angela Lindop (SWU)		
Jenny Heron	Alyson Aleksic	Morgan Gallagher (UQ)		
Liz Lobb	Lesley Bennett	Sally Harper (Valley)		
Anna Mehonoshen	Melanie Blanchard	MASTERS, SUPER LEAGUE & OPEN C'TEE		
COMPETITION C'TEE	Naomi Crase	Not required in 2020		
GRASS	Emily Gotting	U18 SELECTION C'TEE		
Lesley Bennett (C)	Jan Hadfield AM	Matthew Bradley		
Margie Brown	Lyn Hill	Margaret Dilger		
Tracey O'Connor	Helen Kura	Lorraine Hillas		
UNIFORM OFFICER	Naomi Zerner	Sonya Taylor (C)		
Carol Chiu Chong	TURF UMPIRES STEWARD	ARCHIVE C'TEE		
MASTERS FIXTURES & Grading C'TEE	Kath Proctor	Ronda Nix OAM		
Lesley Bennett	GRASS UMPIRES STEWARD	Tracey O'Connor		
Pam Nitarski	Judy Hartnett	Sue Reid (C)		
Kellie Roberts (C)	MASTER UMPIRES STEWARD	Jenny Tidey OAM		
Caroline Schomberg	Lesley Bennett	AUDITOR		
-	·	Don Munro		
	SENIOR TECHNICAL OFFICIALS	5		
Kathryn Austen	Sonya Fisher	Greg Shirvington		
Lesley Bennett	Jenny Heron	Anthony Smith		
Margie Brown	Cheryl Kann	Chang Su		
Naomi Crase	Kathy O'Sullivan	Lyn Thomas		
Narelle Cripps	Caroline Schomberg	Leisa Whitlock		
		John Whitlock		

BWHA STAFF & CONTRACTED SERVICES						
GENERAL MANAGER	MEMBER DEVELOPMENT MANAGER	DEVELOPMENT, TOURS &				
Kathleen Proctor	Amy Ryan	DATABASE OFFICER				
		Kathryn Austen				
SATURDAY ADMIN	ADMINISTRATION OFFICER					
Lorraine Carroll	Lisa Donaldson	FINANCE, TOURS, &				
		DATABASE OFFICER				
BriZHockey MEDIA MANAGER	GROUNDS STAFF	Carol Chiu Chong				
Paul Mills	Noala Gordon					
	John Robinson	DP TIME STEWARD				
DOWNEY PARK BAR		Chang Su - Morning				
Not required in 2020	DEVELOPMENT OFFICER	Shona Whitlock – Afternoon				
	Tamiesha Elmes (Jan to Mar 2020)					
	CANTEEN					
Matthew Speechley	Emelia Pyle (C)	Hannah Holdsworth				
Tess Di Tullio	Hannah Shaw	Ella Rigby				
Sarah Pobjie	Jeremy Truscott (C)					
	SPORTS TRAINERS					
Konnie Chang	The Force Sports Team	Peter Lynskey				
	2020 HONORARY MEMBERS					
Mr Andrew Blanchard	Mr Dylan Elliott	Mr Paul Mills				
Mr Matt Bradley	Mr Peter Gaddes	Ms Deb O'Connell				
Mrs Kerryl Brown	Mrs Emily Gotting	Mr Greg Shirvington				
Mr Bruce Carroll	Mrs Lorraine Hillas	Mr Anthony Smith				
Mrs Lorraine Carroll	Mrs Kylie Houlihan	Mr Peter Smith				
Ms Naomi Crase	Ms Helen Kura	Mr Lathem Tabrett				
Ms Margaret Dilger	Ms Tara Leonard	Mr Chris West				
-		Mr John Whitlock				

2020 MEETINGS

Management Meetings (24)					
Name	Attendance				
Karin Walduck	24				
Sonya Fisher	20				
Christine Blanchard	21				
Kath Proctor	23				
Lesley Bennett	22				
Kellie Roberts	18				
Sue Reid	23				
Bron Morris	22				
Di Brodie	18				
Judy Hartnett (Jnrs)	21				

Council Meetings (3)							
Club	Attendance	Club	Attendance				
All Hallows	2	Pine Hills	2				
Arana Ascot/Ascot	3	Pine Rivers	2				
Bulimba	3	QUT	0				
Commercial	3	Redcliffe	3				
Commodores	3	St Andrews	3				
Easts	3	SBE	3				
Kedron Wavell	2	SWU	3				
LHC	2	University of QLD	2				
MBC	2	Valley	2				
Norths	3						

CONTENTS

Section	Page
President's Report	8
Vale – Denise Byrne	9
Vice President's Report	10
General Manager's Report	10
Treasurer's Report	15
BriZHockey Report	16
Database & Social Media Report	18
Competitions Portfolio	
Fixture & Grading (Turf, Grass, Masters)	18
Umpire & Technical Committee Report	21
Turf Umpires Steward's Report	22
Grass Umpires Steward's Report	23
Recording & Reporting (Match Secretary Report)	24
Development Portfolio Report	
Member Development Manager's Report	25
Facilities Report	26
Tours, Uniforms & Equipment Report	28
Records	
Senior Points Table	29
Senior Results	33
BWHA, Hockey Queensland and Australia Umpire Accreditations and Awards	37
Queensland and Australian Technical Badges	37
Queensland And Australian Technical Appointments	38
Queensland Representatives	38
International Representatives	39
Hockey Queensland Officials	39
Junior Section	41
Appendix	
Financial Statements – Year ending 30 th September 2020	55





PRESIDENT'S REPORT

What a challenging and momentous year 2020 has been. In time we will all look back on this year and remember and reflect on what a pivotal year it was. As I write this report I have focussed on the many achievements for the year and some of the challenges faced, together with opportunities to consider moving forward.

Our winter fixture season had a start/stop/start nature this year:

- We started the year like any other year, but had to stop all fixture competition mid-March 2020 due to the quarantine restrictions brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic.
- Were able to resume with a shortened winter fixture competition from mid-July 2020 when sporting restrictions were eased. This was not an entirely simple and straight-forward process, since player numbers had changed, and allocation of teams to divisions needed amendment.
 Draws also needed to be re-assessed.
- But then were able to continue with the hockey fixture competitions for juniors, seniors and masters, at five turf venues and two grass venues, for over 3,000 registered players.
- Overall numbers were 15% down on 2019 player numbers, with the biggest decrease, not unexpectedly, amongst senior players. However, it was very reassuring to see how many players were able and keen to return.
- We had established a sixth division for senior turf to accommodate club requests, with the
 availability of the second turf at Burringbar, but amended that to ensure sufficient team
 numbers in each division. Not all clubs were entirely happy with this change but generally
 accepted it in the spirit of cooperation.
- No finals awards were handed out this year, largely to ensure minimal person-to-person contact as part of our COVID-safe plan. Not everybody was happy with this, but it was done with good intent. We will be re-considering how this can be better done for next year/s.

We continue to work with Brisbane Hockey Association (BHA) to administer Hockey Brisbane Inc, and with BHA and Kedron Wavell Services Hockey Club (KWSHC) to administer the Brisbane Hockey Management Group (BHMG), which manages the Burringbar turf facility. Work there is now underway to construct the technical bench and dugouts thanks to a State Government female facility grant.

Work is still underway to complete the amenities block on Field 10 at Downey Park with delays introduced by the need to seek approvals and more approvals for each component of the work.

Planning has already commenced for 2021, in conjunction with BHA and with input from Hockey Qld. With ongoing uncertainty around what restrictions may or may not be in place our planning also needs to consider multiple scenarios and options. What an opportunity for innovation!

I would like to thank all the members of my board for their commitment, enthusiasm and, in particular, their resilience during the year. To all the dedicated volunteers at club and association level — thank you, because your workload this year was also substantially increased. And last but certainly not least, my sincere thanks to Kath Proctor and all the BWHA staff for their ongoing support and tremendous work effort in what has been a quite unique year.

Dr Karin Walduck - President

VALE DENISE BYRNE



Denise played for Taxation, BWHA, Queensland and Australia (1963).

She was an outstanding sportswoman excelling in many sports, hockey, golf, and athletics to name a few

She was a wonderful volunteer and player for BWHA.

From 2011 to 2013 she was the friendly face serving at the bar at Downey Park, providing dips and a chat to all who came upstairs after their game for a social drink and game de-brief.

Denise is honoured on the Taxation Minor Premier Shield for DP5 and her photo is on the rail of honour in the clubhouse. Denise held the following hockey volunteer positions:

Equipment Officer: 1963Senior Executive: 1968

• Umpires Convenor: 1968 1969

Manager - Wide Bay Brisbane: 1975

Coach - Secondary School Girls (1): 1976 1977

Senior Grading/Selection: 1977 - 1979
Manager - Wide Bay Under 16: 1979
Manager/Goodh - Brichage 3: 1979

Manager/Coach - Brisbane 2: 1979Coach - SEQ Under 19 (2) 1984

Coach - Queensland Vets Touring: 1986Club House Committee: 1987-1993

Vice President: 1989 - 1992

Manager - Veterans State Championships: 1989

Selector Veterans: 1991 (C) 1992Manager - Qld Vets 40yrs+: 1991

• Coach - Vets 2: 1993

She will be sadly missed by all that knew her.

Rest in Peace Denise

VICE PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Our year started with the very exciting news from the LNP that they would commit to building turfs on top of a carpark at Downey Park if they were elected at the local government elections in March. The LNP were subsequently returned to Council and have since committed funds in the budget this year to do preliminary investigation work.

So the ongoing story of the turf at Downey Park continues. We hope next year that the planning for the facility continues to something more definite.

Christine Blanchard - Vice-President

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

What a year to review.

It started in the usual way - the 2019 Board of Management held 4 planning meetings in October and November 2019 to consider the rules and procedures identified during the season. We asked the clubs for their input through a questionnaire, the responses were used to make 16 changes to rules, processes and procedures for 2020.

The 86th Annual General Meeting was held on Tuesday 26th November 2019. Awards recognising the valuable role volunteers play in our association were given out with special mention to our Senior Volunteer of the Year **Bron Morris** (Database Officer, Communications Sub-Committee and Junior Duty Supervisor) and Junior Volunteer of the Year **Kerri McKeon** (BWHA Team Manager U15 2 and U11 1 Teams). BWHA Life Membership was bestowed on **Sonya Fisher** for her outstanding work on the Board of Management, as Treasurer and in many areas of our sport, she is a dedicated volunteer thoroughly deserving of this award. The Board of Management remained constant with 8 members from across 7 clubs.

The Board of Management met in December to appoint convenors to committees. A small Christmas party was held just prior to Christmas for Staff, Management and Life Members at the BWHA Clubhouse.

We were excited to get an election promise from the BCC to instal two synthetic turfs at Downey Park, unfortunately planning for this has been put aside to deal with the pandemic.

We continued the work to spend the grant we received from the Department of Sport and Recreation for a new **Female Facility** near field 10 at Downey Park. We have been required to ensure our project meets with BCC requirements on flooding, contaminated land, and heritage. It has been a long process, with many hurdles, but we can see the finishing line at last. Thank you to John Giles from **John Giles and Associates** for his project management to date and Kathy Rogers from the Department of Sport for her assistance. At times we have had to call on the support and assistance of our local and state members (Cr Andrew Wines & Hon Tim Nichols MP), and we sincerely thank them for that, **Sonya Fisher** has been instrumental in networking to keep the project moving. We also received funding from the **Australian Federal Government** (\$5000 - Volunteer Grants for Training), and the **Queensland**

State Government for Active Clubs (\$2000 for Umpire Development), we have an application in with the **Community Gambling Benefit Fund** to upgrade our Toro mower. Thank you to all who assisted with these grant applications and thank you to the government departments who make the funds available to assist not for profit groups like ours, without this funding many projects could not happen

Hockey Brisbane Inc. is an association to manage the activities BHA & BWHA do together and we met regularly in 2020. We continue to explore areas that we can develop together to improve the hockey experience of all in Brisbane. Recently we met with the HQ CEO, Alison Lyons and we will be meeting again in November to plan for 2021.

Our first Council meeting for the calendar year was on the 28th January, 2020, we discussed:

- The HQ player Fees.
- The new REVSport database.
- Providing information and important dates to get the season under way.
- Development (Player, Technical, Coach and Umpire) opportunities available during the year.
- New staff member Tamiesha Elmes.
- Moving the 13T1 division to Friday night.

The Junior Committee remained stable in 2020 with 7 members led by Judy Hartnett. This is a large section of our association and many decisions need to be made, however, like the rest of the association the turf competition had just begun when COVID-19 hit and hockey stopped, this put a lot more responsibility on Judy as chair and being part of the Board decision making sessions. Thank-you Judy, and your committee, for getting through a Junior season this year.

The affiliations for the Senior Turf teams were submitted at the end of 2019, this provided for 6 divisions. When COVID-19 hit and hockey had to shut down, all hockey stopped and the Board of Management went into overdrive to work through the problems and prepare for the many possible scenarios of a return to sport. New budgets were done, clubs who had paid half fees had the majority returned to them. BWHA kept the team affiliation fee and a percentage of the Senior turf fees to provide running costs for the association, with the advice if would be taken off future fees.

To say the time that the pandemic really hit sport and Queensland in general was unprecedented, is understood by all. Everyone was impacted and community sport like ours was not exempt. BWHA is a large organisation with 2 venues to manage, staff and volunteers, and fixed income from our competition membership, no competition means no income. New budgets had to be set, initially things looked very grim. Thanks to the wise actions of past and present Boards of Management, BWHA had reasonable funds to support the short-term management of the association. However, we cut all costs possible, initially it appeared all staff would be stood down, but through a combination of reduced or cut hours, leave and government support we have survived in a reasonable position. Unfortunately, we had to say farewell to Miesh Elmes and Lisa Donaldson.

We applied for and received several grants and assistance to support us during the COVID-19 shutdown from all levels of Government - Federal Government, State Government and the Brisbane City Council we thank them all for their support.

All eligible staff were put on JobKeeper and a skeleton staff kept the business of BWHA happening. While you would expect this would be a time of little work to be done, the exact opposite was true. As we were one week out from starting the grass season, the stock for the canteens and bar at both Downey and Rasey Park had been fully stocked, this needed to be collated and then sold where possible to recoup as much money as possible, as not all items had enough shelf life to outlast the shutdown. Unfortunately, some stock could not be sold in time and we donated stock to "OzHarvest". Services had to be cancelled and then the planning, scenarios and ideas worked through to find a way forward for our sport. Refunds for fees and programs and payment of invoices all continued through this period.

It was during this time, that the true value not only our staff but of our outstanding volunteers stood out. I know all club officials had an enormous task during this period and I thank each and everyone of them for their commitment to our sport and their club, well done. Our **Board of Management** normally meet on the 2nd and 4th Tuesday of the month during the season, but during the shutdown met weekly via Zoom. There was so much happening, almost daily, the need to meet weekly was necessary. From these meetings Management Reports were sent out to clubs to keep them updated and hopefully offer support. Thank you to every member of the Board of Management for your commitment to our association and sport.

It must be noted that the leadership shown by the new Hockey Queensland CEO **Alison Lyons** during this period was outstanding, being a leader in developing plans for the resumption of Community Sport, and making EVA Codes available to register attendance at venues took a load off all associations and clubs. Thank you, Alison and all staff at Hockey Queensland. During this time the BHA and BWHA Presidents spoke regularly to ensure hockey in Brisbane was moving forward, thank you **Karin Walduck and Todd Fuller** for your work to achieve hockey in Brisbane.

Brisbane Hockey Management Group (BWHA, BHA and KWSHC) also had a busy year, with the finalisation of the second turf ready for competition. The facility is about to start construction of a Female Facility near field 2 to provide changeroom and toilet facilities for this field also Tech Bench facilities for field 2. Work is also being completed on the Grass field and plans are underway to improve the canteen and office facilities at the venue.

When resumption was announced much work and plans were required by clubs, associations and venues, thank you to all that did their part in this. BWHA had to amend some rules to allow for the safe resumption of the sport, these primarily dealt with "get in, play, get out", equipment and facilities (not sharing, cleaning and social distancing), thank you everyone for your assistance with these, without your support our sport could not play.

We sent out a survey to clubs to get a feel for what they wanted from a resumption of our sport in July, the responses were taken into consideration when making the final decisions. Thanks to **Di Brodie, Lesley Bennett, Kellie Roberts and Judy Hartnett** and your many committees and members for being so accommodating and thorough, doing the task of grading and fixtures twice in the year to get us back up and playing. Thank you to Kathryn Austen and Carol Chiu Chong for your support of our volunteers in this area. Thank you to the 3 Match Secretaries, **Kellie, Sue and Lesley** for your diligence and compassion to assist clubs navigate this unusual season, while keeping it fair for everyone.

The REVSport database was introduced to clubs at the start of 2020, the worst possible timing for clubs. It was a challenge to begin with, and we are still working through some issues. In such a difficult year it is hard to really evaluate its performance, so we hope that the lessons learnt this year will stand us in good stead for 2021. Thank you to **Bron Morris** & Kathryn Austen who have worked hard in this space to make improvements for us.

Umpiring is still a challenge in our sport, some clubs are doing a wonderful job promoting and developing umpires, while some are relying on other clubs to carry their load. The Umpire & Technical Committee led by **Sonya Fisher** is always looking for ways to increase and upgrade umpires and technical officials. We received two grants this year, and have another submitted, we hope to use these funds next year to assist with development of umpires and technical officials at state championships and on our competitions. Thanks **to Jenny Heron, Kathryn Austen, Amy Ryan, Judy Hartnett, Lesley Bennett** for allocating Technical Officials and Umpires this year.

Thankfully with everything else occurring we did not need to conduct a Judiciary this year, perhaps people were just happy to be back playing in July and thankful we were able to.

Casual staff members Noala Gordon and John Robinson do an enormous amount of work all year round to have our grass fields ready for competition. Their hours too were reduced to save money during the shutdown, and I thank them for their support during this difficult time. Downey Park is a large inner-city park, open to the public, and was heavily used for general exercise during the shutdown. It continues to be a challenge to keep football boots from ripping up the fields, dogs from leaving their deposits on the fields, and people swinging off our goal boxes, but we continue to work with the BCC to reduce these problems. Thanks to Noala & John on a job well done. Work on the park never stops and we appreciate the cooperation with Downey Park Netball and Brisbane Softball — we all love the park and work hard to look after it. Parking was relieved a little on the resumption of community sport with Netball moving some of their junior competitions to Sunday. We also thank all clubs who enthusiastically assisted and completed their working bee tasks — every job performed is money saved on fees.

At the resumption of our sport in July, our numbers had dropped a little, most appeared to be seniors due to financial, health or work concerns. We hope we can welcome all our members back next year to a full season of hockey. We retained most of our Junior teams, while they may have had smaller player numbers, clubs worked hard to give all players the opportunity to play. In 2021 we need to promote our sport as a whole of life and family sport – *the whole family can participate for the whole of their lives*. Hockey Players need to better promote our sport to the outside world if we want to compete in this competitive recreation market.

With the pandemic in full force, no Representative Teams were selected or attended state or regional tournaments. We look forward to returning to Representative hockey in 2021. We are currently waiting on directives from Hockey Queensland on the format this may take in 2021.

Only 3 Council Meetings were held in 2020, but we sent out regular Management Reports to clubs. We will evaluate the need and number of Council Meetings in 2021.

BWHA retained **briZHockey** for Division 1 game a week from the resumption. Thanks to Paul Mills for his ongoing support and work ethic to put information out during the shutdown, and organise filming

while he was located in NSW. A special thanks also to Peter Smith for commentating and assisting with the set up each week. Paul also worked with the Courier Mail to provide filming of additional finals. Thank you Paul.

Resuming in July, we played a shortened season, with no medallions (in line with the safe return to sport rules) or awards, all teams played through to the finals day to maximise participation. We have offered and are playing increased Summer Competitions to provide additional hockey for our members, thank you Kathryn for organising this.

Thank you to our Downey Park staff: Canteen Convenors – Emelia & Jeremy; Admin – Lorraine; Time Stewards Chang/Shona; Rookie – Jess, First Aid – Konnie & Peter; the Saturday grass fixtures could not run as smoothly without you. A special thanks to Volunteer Bruce Carroll who assists every week at Downey Park, opening and closing the facility and this year stepping in at short notice to be the Rookie Co-ordinator. Thank you in particular to Lisa Donaldson for preparing these areas at the start of the year, and for the resumption.

The Archive Committee continued to source photos of all Brisbane based Australian Players to hang in the clubhouse, we now have 24 framed photos. Thank you to our Archive Committee, Life Members and long-term supporters for continuing to work for BWHA, documenting the important history we have and organising social events. Special thanks to Ronda, Jenny, Tracey & Sue and Keith Nix for hanging the photos.

During this year Australian Player and great friend of BWHA Denise Byrne passed away, she will be sadly missed. Our sincere condolences to all our members who have suffered loss this year or are facing challenges in life, and we congratulate those who have experienced great joy and exciting events. We share in the highs and lows of life with our friends and colleagues in hockey.

Thank you to the many volunteers that support our sport, especially to our President **Dr Karin Walduck**, she is an outstanding volunteer, mentor and leader and we are very lucky to have her. Thank you to the staff members casual, part-time and full time who all provide a great service to our sport. Thank you to the government departments and sponsors who allow us to grow and develop with support, both financial and in-kind.

Kathleen Proctor - General Manager

TREASURER'S REPORT

Well, 2020 has been quite a year.

Thanks again to Kath and the BWHA team. In 2020, they did an amazing job in keeping our bills paid, income receipted, and revised budgets implemented and managed. The extra effort and commitment that was delivered this year ensured the Association stayed viable in 2020 and allowed us to plan for the future.

The full audited Financial Statements for the year ending 30 Sept 2020 are at the end of this annual report.

Our financial position remained relatively stable for such a disrupted year:

- Revenue was approx. \$1.245m versus \$1.4m in 2019, but the 2020 revenue included:
 - \$474k in Grant funding (Field 10 Female Facilities); and
 - o \$143k in COVID Assistance (including JobKeeper payments)
- So, the adjusted revenue figure was closer to \$628k reflecting a compressed fixture season and the impacts of COVID-19 restrictions.
- In 2020, we ended the year with a loss of nearly \$14k (after depreciation expense of \$41.5k and payments associated with the F10 Female Facilities of approx. \$493k) but I think we all recognise it could have been much worse

The Field 10 Female Facilities grant process commenced in 2017, so to see it almost completed this financial year is quite an achievement as it has taken an immense effort from the BWHA Office, our Project Manager, the Sports and Recreation office within the Qld Govt Department of Housing & Public Works, our contractors, Annette Maidment from Townsville Hockey Association (a 2019 Christmas tale) and Hockey Queensland. Also, without the continued support and assistance from the offices of Cr Wines and Tim Nicholls MP, I do not think we would have been able to progress to our current state of a close to completed facility. It has been the project that continues giving (and giving) but that has made us that much more determined to see it through – and we are so so close.

To continue to be successful with our grant applications, both existing and proposed, and to ensure we are heard by all levels of Government; we have maintained our connections with our political representatives including the below and we thank them for their continued support:

- BCC Cr Andrew Wines (Downey Park) and the Lord Mayor Adrian Schrinner
- State Hon Tim Nicholls MP
- Federal Hon Trevor Evans MP

Sonya Fisher - Treasurer

BRIZHOCKEY REPORT

The 2020 briZHockey contract allowed for one game to be filmed a week at the SHC. Then COVID-19 resulted in the 2020 season being postponed. Paul Mills pivoted for us and supplied as much online content as he could find and ended up streaming all the available episodes of the Hockey Zone TV program from 2012 to 2016. This enabled the hockey community to continue to have hockey available for viewing while we could not participate in live games. Paul really enjoyed reliving the past and we are grateful for his efforts.

At the start of July 2020, Paul produced 3 short videos in respect to the 'Safe Return to Play' through funding from the Qld Government. These covered three participant groups – players / umpires / technical personnel. These "Sandra" videos were a first for Paul using a new tool (Doodly) as he was not able to film any live footage. These videos were well received and were shared widely (even internationally) as they offered clear advice about the requirements of 'Safe Return to Play'.

As BWHA's return to play arrangements were finalised the briZHockey contract was extended to allow games to also be filmed at Redcliffe and Easts and by the end of the season also at Burringbar.

Peter Smith was instrumental in helping set up the equipment for the Live Streaming Brisbane crew while Paul, who was stuck across the border in NSW, mixed the cameras remotely. By the end of the season Paul had recruited new crew members, trained up new camera staff as well as a new director (all from TAFE), and we entered into a partnership with the Courier Mail to provide additional coverage to promote the sport (across Junior Turf, Masters and more divisions of Senior turf).

On grand final day, Paul's team set a new benchmark by not only streaming the first two games with two cameras to the Courier Mail site, but also by streaming the last two games with three cameras to the Courier Mail, Facebook and Livestream.

Peter Smith has been an invaluable asset for many years but operated solo for a lot of this year and was a key reason why briZHockey made it through 2020. BWHA provides a big "thank you" to Peter for his efforts.

In summary, although 2020 posed many problems we are incredibly pleased with how Paul and his team adapted to overcome all of them. Through Paul and his team's commitment and with the consistent commentary, assistance, and commitment of Peter Smith, BWHA has again been able to provide some of the best hockey coverage in Australia. As a side benefit, we are also providing opportunities for up and coming media personnel to learn their craft from Paul Mills, a very experienced operator.

briZHockey Video Stats 2020

Games Streamed – Facebook – Livestream – Youtube Courier Mail viewing statistics are unknown

Event	Full Game FB	Full Game LS	Highlights FB	Highlights LS	Highlights YT			
Grand Finals	3700	144			621 / 321			
W11 Com v Asc	916	54	672	22	297			
W10 Asc v Red	1100	54	651	17	257			
W9 Asc v StA	1100	38	1100	18	198			
W9 DIV 2	1000	40	Extra Game	Training Staff				
W8 Ked v Est	1300	142	683	27	349			
W7 Ked v Val	1100	85		35	372			
W6 Uni v Est	1100	63	489	47	319			
W5 Nth v Uni	930	77	1200	34	296			
W4 Nth v Est	1100	119	777	44	291			
W3 Com v Nth	1600	128	701	34	334			
W2 Ked v Sqh	1800	92	864	37	313			
W1 Com v Est	1100	93	1300	51	273			
W0 Asc v StA	1300	108	1100	61	504			
Safe Return to Pl	ay Videos							
Sandra Player	557				216			
Sandra Umpire	537				435			
Sandra Tech	288				111			
HockeyZone epis	HockeyZone episodes shared during season suspension							
HockeyZone Episodes	Average 250 views per	Around 125 episodes	The whole episodes were	All available now				
2012 - 2016	shared episode	produced	never online					

Sonya Fisher - briZHockey Liaison

DATABASE & SOCIAL MEDIA

I thought the challenge for the 2020 season was going to be yet another new national registration & competition management system rolled out at the last minute prior to fixtures starting, with all the defects still to be ironed out as the season progressed.

Revolutionise appears to be here for at least another year, so hopefully the start of next season will be smoother from an administrative perspective. Big thanks to Kathryn in the BWHA office and especially to all the club administrators for their patience with the ongoing changes & perseverance with the new system on top of all the usual challenges with running a club.

BWHA has continued to use social media (Facebook & Instagram especially) to engage and inform both our players & the wider public. Thanks to Amy for managing our content on the platforms and we encourage all the members of our hockey family to participate in positive communications around what we find best about our awesome sport.

Bron Morris - Database and Club Support

COMPETITIONS PORTFOLIO REPORTS

FIXTURES & GRADING

TURF

We began the year as normal with Clubs' affiliations and fixtures commencing in February and March. A few games into the season COVID-19 put a stop to everything.

When we were able to play, consultation was undertaken with clubs to gauge how players had fared through the uncertainty and instability of the lengthy hiatus and how much it had impacted on them all personally. A player survey was also conducted. Affiliations were resubmitted and overall, most clubs maintained similar numbers although were more stretched for players than prior to the COVID-19 break. Unfortunately, St Andrews withdrew their Division 2 team, SWU lost a team in Division 5 and for balance of numbers UQ withdrew a team in Division 6. For me the worst part was we had an uneven number of teams in Div 2 meaning players would be faced with the prospect of a bye in addition to the COVID-19 stoppage.

With the limited time for the season remaining and conscious of heat impacts on players moving into spring, the focus for 2020 was on maximising the opportunity for player participation and ensuring everyone had access to as many games of hockey as possible before players found the weather conditions too challenging. The general consensus of players and clubs was players wanted game time and so the competition model was revised so that all clubs could have a weekly match till conclusion of the season. The progressive drop out of teams until only two teams played in a grand final in the final week was abandoned. The 2020 reboot model was certainly not perfect, but our juniors, seniors and masters players were back playing the game they loved. It was great to see players back enjoying playing hockey especially when at some points during the year we were uncertain this would even happen!

Our roles as I see it through Gradings is to help build Clubs – not put impediments in their way. I have been a long-time advocate of a grading system that gives Clubs the options of placing a team where the skillset sits and takes club development goals into account, as well as their player numbers, rather than a relegation system which I believe stifles club growth and development. There were a myriad of ways and systems the new rebooted season could have followed. However, the end decision was made and whilst it did not suit all, it suited the majority at time of the season reset. I want to thank everyone who gave me feedback during the rebooted year, it is always great to see the passion and ongoing commitment that everyone has for our competition and our sport.

Organising the fixtures is not always a simple process. It is very time consuming with factors that impact the schedule such as umpire availability, turf availability, linking with BHA, managing specific time requirements for filming for briZHockey, plus general Club requests. So, to my committee - Jenny Heron, Liz Lobb & Anna Mehonoshen, I'm so thankful for everything you bring to the table. You are hardworking and dedicated members of the BWHA community, and we would be a lesser organisation without you.

Huge thank you to the BWHA office who have had a year of great ups and downs. Your dedication to our players is amazing and I cannot thank you enough. I will again single out Kat Austen, for her organisation, drive, enthusiasm and insight – you are inspiring, and I thank you for your commitment, counsel and insights.

Biggest thank you must go to our Club volunteers who have worked under stressful and often thankless conditions this year and conditions that have changed from week to week. You keep our sport going - Thank you.

Di Brodie – Turf Fixture & Grading Chair

GRASS

What a remarkable season for grass hockey in 2020! Preparation was well under way to start the season when COVID-19 disrupted all the plans, with the season finally getting off the ground in July. As BWHA shares the Downey Park fields with softball, and COVID-19 restrictions in force, the chances of our grass players getting a game had been looking grim. Thank you to all the players, coaches and umpires and who felt comfortable playing and officiating under the restricted conditions. With the number of spectators limited by the "get in, play and get out" rule and the upstairs clubhouse closed there was little opportunity to experience the social side of grass hockey.

2020 was always going to be a tough year for some teams. The committee flagged in 2019 that if team affiliations were less than 40, then the number of divisions would drop from 5 to 4 and that some clubs would be in a higher division than requested. For some clubs, this meant they were unable to field a team in the higher division, for others this was an opportunity to retain and recruit quality players. By the time the competition could commence, there were six teams in DP1, ten in DP2, six in DP3 and nine in DP4. To give players value for their fees and to maximise the number of games for each team, the usual finals series was dispensed with. Games to determine positions from 3rd to anywhere up to 10th were played on a different weekend from the finals so that the grand final day could be a special occasion, albeit without the usual crowds, the presentations or the clubhouse bar available.

Thank you to John and Noala for maintaining and marking the fields. They were in wonderful condition at the start of the season, helped no doubt by the additional 3 months of rest.

Thank you also to the grass grading committee of Lesley Bennett, Margie Brown, Tracey O'Connor and Joan Walker. Even though clubs supply a list of proposed names with their affiliations, the teams that eventually take the field sometimes bear no resemblance to the original paperwork.

With no games organised to coincide with men's games at the club's home fields the fixtures committee had an easier job of allocating game times and fields.

I look forward to a more normal season in 2021.

Lesley Bennett - Grass Fixture & Grading Chair

MASTERS

The committee members were Lesley Bennett, Caroline Schomberg, Pam Nitarski and Maree Whitchurch.

With the season restart in July we were fortunate enough to not lose any teams for the competition. This meant that there was very little rework.

As per suggestions made in 2019, when allocating fixture times, we were able to for the most part take a team's location into consideration for travel time specifically with early timeslots.

Kellie Roberts – Masters Fixture & Grading Chair

UMPIRE & TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

In 2020, even with the disruption of COVID-19, the U&TC with the assistance of many volunteers and BWHA's MDM and Development Officer, continued to develop both Umpires and Technical. We were incredibly lucky, before our season was suspended, to deliver most of our pre-season Umpire sessions as well as the first of our Level 0 Technical Courses with the second Technical course not delivered until August!

Thanks also to Jenny Heron who did an awesome job again with Senior Turf Technical allocations, Kat Austen who worked with a lot of new techs for our Junior Turf Tech allocations and Amy Ryan who took on Senior Turf Umpiring allocations for the first time in 2020 (and discovered what a job it is). These people are the unsung heroes who ensure our fixtures run smoothly and efficiently. So a huge thank you to them all for their efforts.

In 2021, we are already working with our Member Development Manager, Amy Ryan on how we can support Clubs to develop their own Umpires and Technical Officials. BWHA can provide access to courses and people to help you – you just need to ask. Our 2021 plans are an extension of work we planned for 2020 where we were going to connect with Club Administrators responsible for Umpire and Technical development – but this obviously came to a complete halt by COVID-19!

Umpire Development

- BWHA can arrange for someone to attend umpiring sessions clubs host whether it be with Junior teams, Parents or Senior Turf, Grass or Masters teams.
- These types of sessions can remove some of the anxiety that new or evolving umpires face.
- The team supporting this program all umpired their first match at some point so they all know what it is like to whistle their first game.
- So maybe your 2021 challenge should be to pick up a whistle OR if you are already an accredited umpire, to mentor someone from your club throughout the season

Technical Development

- We were able to deliver two Level 0 Technical Courses in March and August 2020 the first for many years.
- 11 people accredited with some hoping to be tested for their HQ Senior Judge Certificate at the HQ Indoor Championships to be held in November and December 2020:
 - o Emma Callick
 - Janet Dobbs
 - o Kerri McKeon
 - Tracey O'Connor
 - Bradley Pring
 - o Chang Su
 - Karin Walduck
 - Kristin Walduck
 - Maree Whitchurch
 - John Whitlock
 - Shirley Woodward

Sonya Fisher – U&TC Chair

TURF UMPIRES STEWARD'S REPORT

The 2020 season started in March with the senior turf competition being able to complete 3 rounds of fixtures, before the season was temporarily abandoned.

With the re-start in July, many members understandably had changes to their circumstances, which meant not all members were able to participate or contribute to their hockey in a usual fashion.

This impacted not only umpiring allocations, but the availability of umpire mentors / assessors.

Despite the challenges, we again had an outstanding group of Level 3 & 2 umpires officiating on many of our fixtures, many who travel from throughout the South East Corner of Queensland. Some developing umpires gained incredible opportunities to officiate Division 1 matches alongside some of the best umpires in the country as their co-umpire.

We are very thankful for the continued support shared by Jan Hadfield AM and Lyn Hill who act as Umpire Coaches most weekends on the sidelines. Our umpires are blessed with opportunity to learn from your expertise. This appreciation is extended to all of our umpire mentors — Alyson Aleksic, Lesley Bennett, Melanie Blanchard, Naomi Crase, Emily Gotting, Judy Hartnett, Lyn Hill, Lisa Hollis, Jasmin Kay, Helen Kura, Aimee Mazzaferri, Chloe Reid, Caitlyn Smith, Stefany Worner and Naomi Zerner.

Although the season was short and the resources were limited, we still managed to mentor many umpires and award 24 new accreditations in 2020.

An area of attention for most clubs would be their umpiring development – whilst it is acknowledged that not all members will become umpires, the encouragement and availability in opportunity to become one should be as strongly emphasized as the playing and coaching pathways.

Thank you to all who umpired this year – particularly those who were flexible with their umpiring commitments – and those club representatives who worked closely with BWHA to get the best outcomes for their umpires – it has been greatly appreciated.

Amy Ryan – Member Development Manager

GRASS UMPIRES STEWARD'S REPORT

The senior grass competition at Downey Park this year was reduced slightly due to effects of COVID-19. 31 teams played senior grass this year compared to 36 last year requiring 30 umpire allocations to be filled each week. Among the DP 'regular' umpires there was a pleasing increase in the number of young umpires using senior grass competition to hone their umpiring skills and to help their clubs cover their allocations. Where possible these developing umpires were paired with an experienced DP 'regular' and overall the standard of umpiring was high allowing teams to enjoy their shortened season.

I would like to thank the BWHA senior grass clubs, players and club umpire co-ordinators for their support and flexibility to fulfil the Downey Park umpiring requirements each week. A particular thankyou to the umpires who were flexible with games and swap allocations in the uncertainty of this season when unexpected difficulties arose for some umpires.

Recommendations:

- Ensure clubs to continue to inform BWHA of umpire changes e.g. injuries or absences that
 affect umpire availability during the season or umpire development intentions and
 requirements, so umpires can be allocated from the most up-to-date version of their umpire
 register to minimise changes needed once the draw is published.
- Encourage clubs to list details of junior/beginner umpire needs on their umpire register so they can be allocated to suitable games with experienced umpires to assist their development.

Judy Hartnett – Grass Umpire Steward

COMPETITIONS: RECORDING & REPORTING (MATCH SECRETARY REPORT)

TURF

With this being my first season as Turf Match Secretary, I spent probably more time than necessary getting my head around the process and trying to come up with a more time efficient method of carrying out the necessary checks. The lack of available technology and reporting from the current database makes this difficult, although not impossible. The shortened COVID-19 season made my introduction an easier one than may have been had this been a regular length season. I am looking forward to working on some systems and processes in the off season, using excel, that will make the process less manual and less time consuming, at least to carry this forward until there is improved functionality within the database.

I thank the team managers for their efforts made to have match sheets completed accurately and to BWHA specifications. Even something as small as having names in alphabetical order makes the task so much easier.

I have once again enjoyed being part of the BWHA management team and am looking forward to 2021.

Kellie Roberts – Turf Match Secretary

GRASS

Thank you to the managers, captains and coaches who completed the match book neatly and correctly in alphabetical order, with players from a lower division listed after the team. An example of how to fill out the book is attached at the front of the book.

Because of the nature of the reduced season and the impact of players deciding not to play, there were a number of teams that relied on players from lower teams to field a full team. Should this occur in 2021, clubs need to think seriously about whether they have the players to support the number of teams affiliated with BWHA.

Lesley Bennett – Grass Match Secretary

MASTERS

It has been a very challenging season for all, but it was great to see BWHA still able to field 6 teams in all four Monday Masters divisions. It was great to see Easts back playing MM1 and SBE moving their teams from Division 3 and 4 in 2019 to Division 2 and 3 in 2020. It was also good to see Redlands filling the space vacated by SBE in Division 4.

Even with the shortened season a total of 429 individuals participated across the different divisions.

Thanks to everyone for having the match books filled out clearly and especially for those with Tech Bench responsibilities who had the team sheets returned to the office quickly which meant records could be kept up to date.

Sue Reid – Masters Match Secretary

DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO REPORT

2020 has brought unusual challenges in the Development department at Brisbane Women's Hockey which have been unparalleled to previous seasons. Whilst the year started strong with a full complement of staff (some new and some returning) and new direction, an obvious road block occurred in March.

Prior to March, we hosted Level 1 & 2 Coaching Courses, our Term 1 Hookin2Hockey and Sporting Schools, U13 Development, U15 & U18 Development and Masters Development programs were in full swing, and our Umpiring Talks were able to go ahead as planned. I'm thankful our members were able to take advantage of most, if not all, of these programs.

Whilst it was difficult to see a season's worth of planning be discarded, it presented new opportunities to review, tweak and build on areas moving forward.

& Kookaburras Clinic (a big thank you to Rosie Malone, Savannah Fitzpatrick, Tim Howard and Dylan Wotherspoon for sharing your time and expertise for our players) and the **Junior Grass Clinic** (another big thank you to Jorja Morgan, Amy Lightbody, Sara Rogers, Tamiesha Elmes, Amanda Little and Paul MacPherson for coaching our up and comers). Welcomed events for both players and coaches to get back to doing what they love.

Due to the cancellation of State Championships for all ages, Hockey Queensland were challenged with the task of still naming squads for the U15 and U18 age groups (to trial in 2021), despite not having the usual opportunity to view players representing their home centre at a tournament.

All Associations were required to submit players for Hockey Queensland consideration, and BWHA approached this task by holding trials for age eligible players – this action provided the greatest amount of opportunity to the highest number of players that were interested in this pathway. We were very thankful for the volunteer selectors and coaches who provided their time at these trials, which was deemed a unique situation from the onset. Congratulations to all players who were selected by Hockey Queensland into their respective squads, we wish you luck at trials in February 2021.

Term 4 of the school calendar has been busy in terms of participation programs – Hookin2hockey, Sporting Schools and Gala Days – as schools attempt to fill their calendar with sport again to gain some normalcy.

Heading into 2021, planning is underway with the optimism that all programs and tournaments will go ahead as normal. Of course, there is always the underlyng threat that our situation will regress and plans will have to be discarded, but I have no doubt that the team at Brisbane Women's Hockey will absorb any new challenges as well as we did in 2020.

Amy Ryan – Member Development Manager

FACILITIES REPORT

The maintenance of the two large parks we lease is completed by casual Noala Gordon (about 8 hours a week) and John Robinson (contractor 1 day a week), they love the parks and fit a lot into the hours they spend with us. With the COVID-19 shut down and our need to reduce all costs, John did not attend for 3 months and Noala worked 4 hours a week during this period to mow. I cannot thank them enough for their dedication and assistance this and every year. They also liaise with the other local sports users and BCC contractors to get the best possible results for our association, well done and thank you both.

The canteen at Rasey Park was opened for JTAS (primary school competition) at Rasey Park in February and March. Lisa then made preparations for the Winter season re-opening at both Downey and Rasey Parks, all stock had been ordered when COVID-19 shut us down. This meant we had full stock, including some stock from the 2019 season that had to be sold off to avoid huge losses. Thanks to Kat and Amy for counting and organising all stock, and thank you to those members who helped out by buying the stock, this reduced the amount of wastage and therefore cost to BWHA. There was some stock, mainly from 2019 that had to be given away and OZHARVEST collected this for use at their charity.

All work in preparation for the season had been completed by March e.g. Working Bees, Equipment checks and testing, waste collection, and fields marked, but then all had to be shut down, again to reduce costs, this was a large job and the facility seemed quite sad without the normal bustle of Winter hockey.

Noala kept the fields mowed and the facility neat and tidy during the shut-down (as required by our leases). When people were again allowed to exercise, the parks became hubs of mid-week casual exercise. It was great to see the park back being used but our eternal challenge of keeping football boots off the fields and dogs off-leash leaving their deposits around the park became a bigger problem.

During this time the BCC extended the Water Harvesting program to our water tanks at Rasey Park, our tanks at field 10 are already part of this system that runs from Finsbury Park and has many of the local sports utilising the "free" water for irrigation. In recent times an issue has arisen in regard to the amount of water being used by all local sports and the need for a flow restrictor, the noise of which is causing issues with the local residents. The BCC has assured us this will be corrected in the near future.

Once the return to sport was announced for July, much work had to be done to get the park ready for hockey, COVID-19 plans developed, fields remarked, goal nets out, canteens set up, hand sanitiser, movement flow signage all within COVID-19 rules and guidelines organised, we also needed to hire a Port-a-loo to replace the toilet on field 10, which was a construction site.. The Board decided not to run a bar as the numbers allowed in the space would make it unviable. We ran a reduced offering canteen at both Downey and Rasey Parks, a special thanks to Jeremy and Emelia the canteen convenors and all staff for your good humour and willingness to assist especially at short-notice to fill gaps. Thanks to Lorraine and Bruce Carroll for their ongoing commitment to our sport and grass hockey, we would not run as smoothly without you. Thank you to our field announcers, and our sports trainers who do more than just treat our members, your support was appreciated. All had more to do, to keep everyone safe as part of our COVID-19 Plans.

At the time of writing this report, we have all but finished the field 10 Female Facility Building, once complete this will have a changeroom, toilets, showers, unisex toilets, disabled toilet/parent's room and umpires' room. Many, many hurdles have been thrown in front of this project, it will be a loud shout of joy when it is finally finished.

The park was heavily used by two schools in July, August and September it is great to see the parks being used mid-week for female sport. Unfortunately, no U11 Southern Cross was held due to COVID-

19 rules. The finals were a different affair with most teams competing to the last date, we hope all enjoyed the season with all the changes forced on us by COVID-19. Thank you to Brisbane Softball for allowing us to continue into September longer than normal to provide a full round of fixtures for our members. Thank you to everyone for adhering to rules and embracing the season for what it was, an extraordinary situation. We hope 2021 will be a return to a more "normal" season, but we will have to wait and see, thank you to all for doing all you could to stay safe, and enjoy the season that was 2020.

Kath Proctor - General Manager

TOURS, UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT REPORT

2020 started out well, but as we all know, it didn't go the way anyone would have planned. Unfortunately, we were unable to send any teams to Representative Tournaments.

Apparel

All of our Apparel items for the 2020 season had already arrived (or were on route) as we shut down in late March this year.

Our new apparel items planned for 2020 arrived and look fantastic. We will have a soft brim visor, beanie and wide brim bucket hat available at our uniform fittings in 2021. We can't wait to see them being proudly worn by our representative players. Many thanks to our continued suppliers, About You Promotions, Hot Lollie, Official Clothing and Atlas Sports for their support. As we are fully stocked for 2021, we will not require any orders however would encourage the hockey community to support these businesses with any of their uniform/apparel needs as they too come back from the year that was.

Uniform & Equipment

We continue to replace old uniforms as we are able to each year. We received our 2020 order mid-March and all uniforms are ready to go once tours recommence. The only item requiring ordering in 2021 are some further U11 Southern Cross Playing Shirts. This was the only order we were able to cancel in 2020 and these will be ordered in 2021 when we know this tournament will go ahead. All other equipment items (balls, markers) are ready to go for the eventual return of the touring season.

Tours

In 2020, BWHA was unable to send any teams away on tour due to the cancellation of all Southern Cross and State Championship Tournaments.

Hockey QLD have announced that the 2021 Championships are to be held as per the 2020 Schedule (with minor date adjustments):

Tournament	Date	Venue (Proposed No. of teams sent)
Masters State Championships	11-13 June	Warwick (6 Teams)
U18 State Championships	27-29 June	Brisbane (BP) (4 Teams)
High Performance	July TBC	TBA
U13 State Championships	4-7 July	Gympie (4 Teams)
U15 State Championships	19-22 Sept	Gold Coast (4 Teams)

Carol Chiu Chong - Tours, Finance and Competitions



2020 RECORDS

SENIORS POINTS TABLES

	Division 1	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Kedron Wavell 1 *	11	11	0	0	54	11	43	33
2	University of QLD 1	11	9	1	1	37	9	28	28
3	Commercial 1	11	8	1	2	44	11	33	26
4	Ascot 1	11	7	4	0	22	14	8	21
5	Easts Carina Leagues 1	11	6	3	2	30	16	14	20
6	Norths 1	11	3	6	2	24	21	3	11
7	Valley 1	11	3	6	2	18	28	-10	11
8	Redcliffe Leagues 1	11	2	9	0	17	49	-32	6
9	St Andrews 1	11	1	9	1	11	33	-22	4
10	SQH 1	11	0	11	0	7	72	-65	0

	Division 2	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	University of QLD 2 *	11	11	0	0	42	1	41	33
2	Commercial 2	11	9	2	0	37	9	28	27
3	Kedron Wavell 2	11	9	2	0	34	7	27	27
4	Easts 2	11	8	3	0	43	11	32	24
5	Ascot 2	11	7	4	0	23	12	11	21
6	Norths 2	11	3	7	1	12	20	-8	10
7	Valley 2	11	3	7	1	19	28	-9	10
8	Redcliffe Leagues 2	11	2	8	1	8	46	-38	7
9	SQH 2	11	1	9	1	3	44	-41	4
10	Bulimba 1	11	0	11	0	6	49	-43	0

	Division 3	<u>P</u>	W	L	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	SD	<u>PTS</u>
1	Commercial 3	11	9	0	2	53	9	44	29
2	Kedron Wavell 3 *	11	8	1	2	43	13	30	26
3	Easts 3	11	7	0	4	31	6	25	25
4	St Andrews 2	11	8	3	0	40	21	19	24
5	Ascot 3	11	4	1	6	22	9	13	18
6	University of QLD 3	11	5	5	1	25	18	7	16
7	SWU 1	11	3	6	2	10	15	-5	11
8	Norths 3	11	3	7	1	15	35	-20	10
9	Bulimba 2	11	3	7	1	9	32	-23	10
10	SBE 1	11	2	7	2	10	33	-23	8
11	Redcliffe Leagues 3	11	2	8	1	7	44	-37	7
12	Valley 3	11	1	10	0	5	35	-30	3

	Division 4	<u>P</u>	W	L	D	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Easts 4 *	11	10	1	0	32	6	26	30
2	Ascot 4	11	9	1	1	27	7	20	28
3	University of QLD 4	11	8	3	0	40	15	25	24
4	Bulimba 3	11	7	3	1	24	12	12	22
5	Easts 5	11	6	4	1	25	19	6	19
6	Kedron Wavell 4	11	6	4	1	21	15	6	19
7	Redlands 1	11	5	4	2	15	20	-5	17
8	Valley 4	11	4	6	1	14	19	-5	13
9	Pine Hills 1	11	3	6	2	22	22	0	11
10	SWU 2	11	2	8	1	10	27	-17	7
11	SBE 2	11	1	10	0	4	35	-31	3
12	St Andrews 3	11	0	11	0	3	40	-37	0

	Division 5	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Easts 6 *	11	9	1	1	42	7	35	28
2	Redcliffe Leagues 4	11	8	1	2	37	4	33	26
3	Kedron Wavell 5	11	8	1	2	24	4	20	26
4	Ascot 5	11	8	3	0	33	9	24	24
5	Valley 5	11	6	4	1	29	13	16	19
6	University of QLD 5	11	5	2	4	17	6	11	19
7	University of QLD 6	11	5	5	1	24	11	13	16
8	Norths 4	11	5	5	1	21	26	-5	16
9	SBE 3	11	3	8	0	7	36	-29	9
10	Easts 7	11	1	10	0	5	40	-35	3
11	Bulimba 4	11	1	10	0	10	46	-36	3
12	Easts 8	11	1	10	0	3	50	-47	3

	DP1	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	D	SF	SA	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Commercial 4 *	10	9	0	1	31	5	26	28
2	Ascot 6	10	6	2	2	16	8	8	20
3	Pine Hills 2	10	4	5	1	16	23	-7	13
4	Norths 5	10	3	5	2	12	14	-2	11
5	St Andrews 4	10	2	5	3	5	15	-10	9
6	Commodores 1	10	0	7	3	4	19	-15	3

	DP2	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	QUT 1 *	9	8	0	1	20	0	20	25
2	Pine Rivers 1	9	6	1	2	36	5	31	20
3	Valley 6	9	5	0	4	23	4	19	19
4	Commercial 5	9	6	2	1	31	13	18	19
5	Norths 6	9	4	5	0	16	20	-4	12
6	Ascot 7	9	3	4	2	13	15	-2	11
7	Kedron Wavell 6	9	3	4	2	7	16	-9	11
8	University of QLD 7	9	3	6	0	8	28	-20	9
9	SWU 3	9	1	8	0	2	18	-16	3
10	Pine Hills 3	9	0	9	0	0	37	-37	0

	DP3	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	D	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Commercial 6	10	9	1	0	24	5	19	27
2	Norths 7 *	10	9	1	1	23	7	16	25
3	Kedron Wavell 7	10	5	4	1	22	16	6	16
4	Valley 7	10	3	5	2	11	23	-12	11
5	St Andrews 5	10	1	7	2	5	18	-13	5
6	Commodores 2	10	0	8	2	3	19	-16	2

	DP4	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	Ļ	<u>D</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	University of QLD 8 *	8	8	0	0	1	20	2	18	24
2	Commercial 7	8	7	1	0	1	19	3	16	21
3	Pine Rivers 2	8	5	2	1	1	14	10	4	16
4	Norths 8	8	4	3	1	1	10	8	2	13
5	Pine Hills 4	8	2	3	3	1	5	6	-1	9
6	Ascot 8	8	2	4	2	1	14	18	-4	8
7	St Andrews 6	8	1	5	2	1	3	13	-10	5
8	Kedron Wavell 8	8	0	5	3	1	8	19	-11	3
9	SBE 4	8	0	6	2	1	1	15	-14	2

	<u>MM1</u>	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	D	SF	SA	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Valley MM1	10	6	0	4	24	9	15	22
2	Kedron Wavell MM1 *	10	6	1	3	22	9	13	21
3	Ascot MM1	10	3	4	3	12	14	-2	12
4	Bulimba MM1	10	3	4	3	12	15	-3	12
5	Easts MM1	10	3	4	3	12	16	-4	12
6	University of QLD MM1	10	1	9	0	10	29	-19	3

	<u>MM2</u>	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	D	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Ascot MM2 *	10	9	0	1	32	7	25	28
2	Redlands MM2	10	7	1	2	19	8	11	23
3	Bulimba MM2	10	3	6	1	14	18	-4	10
4	Commercial MM2	10	2	4	4	11	18	-7	10
5	SBE MM2	10	2	4	4	10	17	-7	10
6	Norths MM2	10	0	8	2	8	26	-18	2

	<u>MM3</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	L	D	SF	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Norths MM3	10	9	0	1	24	3	21	28
2	QUT MM3 *	10	5	1	4	12	4	8	19
3	Kedron Wavell MM3	10	5	4	1	15	9	6	16
4	Redcliffe Leagues MM3	10	3	5	2	8	8	0	11
5	Commercial MM3	10	3	6	1	7	17	-10	10
6	SBE MM3	10	0	9	1	2	27	-25	1

	<u>MM4</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Easts MM4 *	10	7	0	3	23	4	19	24
2	Valley MM4	10	5	2	3	19	7	12	18
3	SWU MM4	10	5	2	3	14	13	1	18
4	Pine Hills MM4	10	3	4	3	10	11	-1	12
5	Redlands MM4	10	3	6	1	8	19	-11	10
6	Bulimba MM4	10	0	9	1	4	24	-20	1

2020 SENIOR RESULTS

HIGHEST GOAL SCORERS

GRADE	NAME	GOALS	CLUB
The Bart Mellish MP & Joan Pease MP Division 1	Britt Wilkinson	15	Kedron Wavell
Division 2	Natalie Gordon	11	Easts
Division 3	Karen Stennett	18	Commercial
Division 4	April Bullion	16	Easts
Division 5	Debbie Wark	15	Redcliffe Leagues
DP1	Elizabeth Pressland	12	Commercial
DP2	Hannah Keen	10	Norths
DP3	Brianna Hancock	10	Kedron Wavell
DP4	Jaya Muscat	15	University of QLD
Masters 1	Maxine Kelly	8	Kedron Wavell
Masters 2	Samone Spall	15	Ascot
Masters 3	Sally Allan & Raina McCarthy	6	Norths
Masters 4	Georgia Searle	8	Valley

MINOR PREMIERS

The Bart Mellish MP & Joan Pease MP Division 1	Taxation Shield	Kedron Wavell 1
Division 2	Mary Nairn Shield	University of QLD 2
Division 3	Elma Brennand Shield	Commercial 3
Division 4	Lyn Thomas Shield	Easts 4
Division 5	June Snarski Shield	Easts 6
DP1	Jenny Tidey Shield	Commercial 4
DP2	Heather Scraggs Shield	QUT 1
DP3	Taxation Shield R.Robinson, E.McDougall, E.White	Commercial 6
DP4	Taxation Shield K.Lehmann, D.Hirst	University of QLD 8
Masters 1	Joyce Proctor Shield	Valley MM1
Masters 2	Faye Wastell Shield	Ascot MM2
Masters 3	Noala Gordon Shield	Norths MM3
Masters 4	Meg Brodie Shield	Easts MM4

PREMIERSHIP WINNERS

The Bart Mellish MP & Joan Pease MP Division 1	Shirley Higgins Memorial Shield	Kedron Wavell 1
Division 2	Annette Eve Trophy	University of QLD 2
Division 3	Olive Perry Trophy	Kedron Wavell 3
Division 4	Marilyn Chatfield Trophy	Easts 4
Division 5	Dell Parkyn Trophy	Easts 6
DP1	Betty Watson Trophy	Commercial 4
DP2	Pixie Josiffe Trophy	QUT 1
DP3	Ruby Robinson Trophy	Norths 7
DP4	Phemie McDougall Trophy	University of QLD 8
Masters 1	Ros Julien Trophy	Kedron Wavell MM1
Masters 2	Isabel Sims Trophy	Ascot MM2
Masters 3	Caroline Schomberg Trophy	QUT MM3
Masters 4	Karin Walduck Trophy	Easts MM4

BEST SENIOR CLUB

Commercial

2020 SENIOR FINAL PLACINGS

All teams in each division played on Grand Final Day for a final placing in the 2020 Season

DIVISION 1		DIVISION 2	
1 st	Kedron Wavell 1	1 st	University of QLD 2
2 nd	University of QLD 1	2 nd	Commercial 2
3 rd	Commercial 1	3 rd	Easts 2
4 th	Ascot 1	4 th	Kedron Wavell 2
5 th	Easts1	5 th	Ascot 2
6 th	Norths 1	6 th	Norths 2
7 th	Valley 1	7 th	Valley 2
8 th	Redcliffe Leagues 1	8 th	Redcliffe Leagues 2
9 th	St Andrews 1	9 th	SQH 2
10 th	SQH 1	10 th	Bulimba 1
	DIVISION 3		DIVISION 4
1 st	Kedron Wavell 3	1 st	Easts 4
2 nd	Commercial 3	2 nd	Ascot 4
3 rd	St Andrews 2	3 rd	University of QLD 4
4 th	Easts 3	4 th	Bulimba 3
5 th	University of QLD 3	5 th	Kedron Wavell 4
6 th	Ascot 3	6 th	Easts 5
7 th	SWU 1	7 th	Redlands 1
8 th	Norths 3	8 th	Valley 4
9 th	SBE 1	9 th	Pine Hills 1
10 th	Bulimba 2	10 th	SWU 2
11 th	Redcliffe Leagues 3	11 th	SBE 2
12 th	Valley 3	12 th	St Andrews 3
	DIVISION 5		
1 st	Easts 6		
2 nd	Redcliffe Leagues 4		
3 rd	Ascot 5		
4 th	Kedron Wavell 5		
5 th	Valley 5		
6 th	University of QLD 5		
7 th	University of QLD 6		
8 th	Norths 4		
9 th	Easts 7		
10 th	SBE 3		
11 th	Bulimba 4		
12 th	Easts 8		

DP 1		DP 2	
1 st	Commercial 4	1 st	QUT 1
2 nd	Ascot 6	2 nd	Pine Rivers 1
3 rd	Pine Hills 2	3 rd	Valley 6
4 th	Norths 5	4 th	Commercial 5
5 th	St Andrews 4	5 th	Norths 6
6 th	Commodores 1	6 th	Ascot 7
		7 th	University of QLD 7
		8 th	Kedron Wavell 6
		9 th	Pine Hills 3
		10 th	SWU 3
DP 3		DP 4	
1 st	Norths 7	1 st	University of QLD 8
2 nd	Commercial 6	2 nd	Commercial 7
3 rd	Kedron Wavell 7	3 rd	Pine Rivers 2
4 th	Valley 7	4 th	Norths 8
5 th	St Andrews 5	5 th	Pine Hills 4
6 th	Commodores 2	6 th	Ascot 8
		7 th	St Andrews 6
		8 th	Kedron Wavell 8
		9 th	SBE 4

MONDAY MASTERS 1		MONDAY MASTERS 2	
1 st	Kedron Wavell MM1	1 st	Ascot MM2
2 nd	Valley MM1	2 nd	Redlands MM2
3 rd	Ascot MM1	3 rd	Commercial MM2
4 th	Bulimba MM1	4 th	Bulimba MM2
5 th	Easts MM1	5 th	Norths MM2
6 th	University of QLD MM1	6 th	SBE MM2
MONDAY MASTERS 3		MONDAY MASTERS 4	
1 st	QUT MM3	1 st	Easts MM4
2 nd	Norths MM3	2 nd	Valley MM4
3 rd	Redcliffe Leagues MM3	3 rd	SWU MM4
4 th	Kedron Wavell MM3	4 th	Pine Hills MM4
5 th	Commercial MM3	5 th	Bulimba MM4
6 th	SBE MM3	6 th	Redlands MM4

BWHA, HOCKEY QUEENSLAND AND HOCKEY AUSTRALIA UMPIRING ACCREDITATIONS AND AWARDS

Name	Club	Badge	Name	Club	Badge
Kyra Edward	St Andrews	CA	Christine Blanchard	Kedron Wavell	HQCA
Penelope Ferguson	Easts	CA	Zoe Lockton	Kedron Wavell	HQCA
Olivia Grant	Bulimba	CA	Annabelle Pring	Redcliffe	HQCA
Donna Gallagher	Commodores	CA	Tim O'Sullivan	SWU	HQCA
Renae Holmes	St Andrews	CA	Lily Ramsay	Easts	HQCA
Belinda Infanti	Arana Ascot	CA	Lesley Bennett	Pine Hills	HA1
Kerryn Kay	Bulimba	CA	Emma Frey	Ascot	HA1
Sue Kernke	Norths	CA	Lisa Hollis	Valley	HA1
Bridie McGarry	Valley	CA	Jasmin Kay	University	HA1
Zara Nally	Kedron Wavell	CA	Stefany Worner	St Andrews	HA1
Robert Santilli	University	CA	Aimee Mazzaferri	Bulimba	HQ1A
Robyn Sutherland	Pine Hills	CA	Katrina Noonan	Ascot	HQ1A

Note: C- Community, CA – Community Advanced, HQCA – Hockey Queensland Community Advanced, HA1 – Hockey Australia Level 1, HQ1A – Hockey Queensland Level 1 Advanced, HA2 – Hockey Australia Level 2

HOCKEY QUEENSLAND AND HOCKEY AUSTRALIA TECHNICAL BADGES

Emma Callick	Level 0	Kristin Walduck	Level 0
Janet Dobbs	Level 0	Maree Whitchurch	Level 0
Kerri McKeon	Level 0	John Whitlock	Level 0
Tracey O'Connor	Level 0	Shirley Woodward	Level 0
Bradley Pring	Level 0	Margie Brown	HA Level 1
Chang Su	Level 0	Naomi Crase	HA Level 2
Karin Walduck	Level 0		

QUEENSLAND, AUSTRALIAN AND INTERNATIONAL TECHNICAL APPOINTMENTS

TOURNAMENT	NAME	APPOINTMENT / ROLE
NA	Sonya Fisher	World Masters Hockey Technical Committee 27 October 2019
HA U21 Indoor Championship 9-12 January 2020, Wollongong	Sonya Fisher	Assistant Tournament Director
HQ U13 Boys Indoor 20-22 November 2020, Mackay	Sonya Fisher	Tournament Director
HQ U13 Girls Indoor 27-29 November 2020, Mackay	Sonya Fisher	Technical Manager
HQ U18 Girls Indoor 4-6 December 2020, Brisbane	Naomi Crase	Technical Manager
HQ U18 Girls Indoor 4-6 December 2020, Brisbane	Sonya Fisher	Tournament Director

2020 HOCKEY QUEENSLAND & HOCKEY AUSTRALIA REPRESENTATIVES 2020 U18 SQUAD – FOR 2021 TEAM SELECTION

Jade Bartholomeusz – St Andrews
Elisa Condon – Kedron Wavell
Georgie Dobbs – St Andrews
Sophie Edwards – Commercial
Georgina Harris – Commercial
Mekenzie Hermann – University of QLD
Kali Jansen van Rensburg – University of QLD
Phoebe Lingard – Kedron Wavell
Amelia Morgan – Ascot
Hayley Peterson – Easts
Sinead Swartz – Commercial
Sarah Wall – Redcliffe
Eliza White – St Andrews

Peppa Carter – Kedron Wavell
Lauren Deldot – Easts
Madelyn Dobbs – Easts
Sienna Graham – Commercial
Stella Harris – Easts
Amity Humphreys – Commercial
Madyson Jones – Kedron Wavell
Ashleigh McKeon – Ascot
Olivia O'Brien – St Andrews
Jane Ramsay – Easts
Zita Varatharjan – Commercial
Georgie West – Kedron Wavell

HIGH PERFORMANCE SQUAD

Genevieve Ferguson - Easts

Morgan Gallagher – University
Ruby Harris – Easts
Jade Smith – Easts
Renee Taylor – Commercial
Britt Wilkinson – Kedron Wavell
Emily Witheyman-Crump - Commercial

WOMEN'S NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT SQUAD

Morgan Gallagher – University of QLD Britt Wilkinson – Kedron Wavell

HOCKEYROOS SQUAD

Renee Taylor - Commercial

2019 BWHA AWARDS

(Awarded at the AGM after the Annual Report is published each year)

Junior Volunteer of the Year – Kerri McKeon Senior Volunteer of the Year – Bron Morris

2020 HOCKEY QUEENSLAND OFFICIALS

SELECTION PANEL

U18W – Regie Fisher (C) U15W – Regie Fisher, Amy Ryan

HIGH PERFORMANCE ADVISORY GROUP

Jan Hadfield AM

INDOOR COMMITTEE

Carol Bradbury
Lyn Hill (C)
Sonya Fisher
Lyn Tucker

INTEGRITY COMMITTEE

Kate West

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Jenny Heron Joanne Greensill (C) Ronda Nix OAM Cheryl Kann Lyn Thomas

UMPIRE COMMITTEE

Kerryl Brown Lyn Hill (C) Aleisha Neumann

MASTERS COMMITTEE

Karin Walduck

Q.W.A.S.C LIFE MEMBERS

Mrs R Robinson (decd); Mrs E MacDougall (decd); Mrs J Tidey; Miss M Cockings (decd)

SHC LIFE MEMBER

Mrs R Nix OAM 2001

HOCKEY QUEENSLAND MASTERS LONG SERVICE AWARDS

Ms J McCall 2018

QWHA LONG SERVICE AWARDS

Miss M Brown (decd) 1958, Mrs M Nairn (decd) 1959, Mrs A Smith (decd) 1960, Miss M King (decd) 1964, Miss F Cossins (decd) 1965, Mrs M Anstey 1975, Mrs E Green (decd) 1983, Mrs F Wastell OAM 1985, Dr M Hughes OAM (decd) 1990, Mrs J Tidey OAM 1990, Miss J Snarski (decd) 1992, Mrs L Thomas 1993, Mrs V Bartlett 1995

HOCKEY QUEENSLAND DISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARDS

Ms J Hadfield AM 1997, Mrs M Chatfield 2002, Mrs R Nix OAM 2003, Mrs J Heron 2003, Mrs J Proctor 2005 (decd), Miss M Cockings 2008 (decd), Ms Cheryl Kann 2015

QWHA LIFE MEMBERS

Dr F Bage (decd) 1947, Mrs E Dobbin AM 1950 (decd), Miss A Clarke (decd) 1951, Miss J Clarke (decd) 1955, Mrs R Robinson AM MBE (decd) 1956, Mrs K Langan (decd) 1956, Mrs O Perry (decd) 1957, Dr D Hill (decd) 1958, Miss E Watson (decd) 1961, Miss W McMullin (decd) 1963, Miss N Mauchlan (decd) 1964, Miss I Sim (decd) 1965, Miss L Mauchlan (decd) 1966, Mrs A Yeo (decd) 1967, Mrs M Josiffe OAM (decd) 1967, Mrs E McDougall OAM (decd) 1968, Mrs J Viertel OAM 1969, Miss N Young (decd) 1970, Miss S Otto 1971, Mrs A Smith OBE (decd) 1972, Mrs A Parkyn 1977, Mrs N Slade 1978, Miss H Scraggs OAM 1980, Mrs D Roberts 1983

HOCKEY QUEENSLAND LIFE MEMBERS

Mrs J Tidey OAM 1997, Miss J Ellis 1999, Mrs R Nix OAM 2009, Ms J Hadfield AM 2011, Mrs L Thomas 2011, Dr K Walduck 2016, Mrs J Heron 2017, Ms L Hill 2018

HOCKEY AUSTRALIA LIFE MEMBERS

Mrs K Langan (decd) 1958, Mrs R Robinson AM MBE (decd) 1959, Mrs M Josiffe OAM (decd) 1972, Mrs J Viertel OAM 1988, Mrs D Pirie OAM 1999, Miss H Scraggs OAM 2001, Ms J Hadfield AM 2019, Ms L Hill 2020

HOCKEY AUSTRALIA HALL OF FAME

Ms P Glossop 2011

BWHA JUNIOR SECTION

OFFICE BEARERS & OFFICIALS 2020

JUNIOR LONG SERVICE MEDALS

Jenny Tidey OAM – 1988	Marilyn Chatfield – 1993	Kathleen Proctor – 1997
Vonnie Faulkner – 1988	Ronda Nix OAM – 1994	Lynn Quirk – 2000
Elaine Green (Decd) – 1989	Tracey O'Connor – 1996	Pam Patteson – 2003
Barbara Northcott - 1990	Maureen Fleming - 1997	Teresa Kuss - 2003

JUNIOR COMMITTEE									
Alyson Aleksic	Judy Hartnett (C)	Angela Lingard							
Margie Brown	Kylie Houlihan	Gail Reynolds							
		Lynne Somerville							
U15 SELECTION PANEL	TECHNICAL OFFICIALS	FIXTURE & GRADING COMMITTEE							
Dylan Elliott	Lesley Bennett	Margaret Brown							
Peter Gaddes	Margie Brown	Ellen Carey							
Kellie Robinson (C)	Naomi Crase	Judy Hartnett (C)							
Chris West	Narelle Cripps								
	Sonya Fisher	UMPIRE MENTORS							
U13 SELECTION PANEL	Jenny Heron	Alyson Aleksic							
Not required in 2020	Karen Kuhn	Melanie Blanchard							
	Kim Ladbrook	Judy Hartnett							
U11 SELECTION PANEL	Dawn Mackney	Lyn Hill							
Not required in 2020	Kathy O'Sullivan	Lisa Hollis							
	Caroline Schomberg	Jasmin Kay							
U7 & U9 CO-ORDINATOR	Greg Shirvington	Aimee Mazzaferri							
Jess Ross	Anthony Smith	Chloe Reid							
	Chang Su	Caitlyn Smith							
	Lathem Tabrett	Stefany Worner							
	Imogen Turner								
	John Whitlock								

JUNIOR SECTION

CONTENTS

Section	Page
Chairperson Report	43
Records	
Junior Results	45
Junior Points Table	47
Queensland Representatives	54

CHAIRPERSONS REPORT

The Junior Committee supports the provision of hockey for juniors in Brisbane from U7s to Js (U18). We work with the BWHA staff to organise, manage and support the junior fixture competition including grading. This year the Junior Committee maintained its membership of seven members. The committee started the year with intentions to work in particular on the match steward aspect of our role to maintain player records and keep clubs informed of registration issues better than we had managed in the past. That was before COVID-19 arrived. During lockdown many decisions were made but generally the committee was not able to discuss options as we couldn't meet and timelines tended to be tight for email communication. So many decisions relating to getting the competitions started under a COVID-19 plan were made by the committee chair in liaison with BWHA.

2020 Competitions

Junior Turf:

The number of teams in the Junior turf competition increased by 2 teams in 2020. The 13T1 competition was moved to Friday nights and rules were changed to allow clubs to nominate more than one team in the 13T competition. 2 clubs ended up with a team in both 13T1 and 13T2. 7 teams nominated for each 13T division and it was decided that grading was not required. Grading was organised for JT2-4 and the number of teams in each division was kept to even as much as possible to avoid byes in what would be a short season due to COVID-19.

Moving 13T1 to Friday nights relieved some pressure on teams who have girls involved in school hockey. It also allowed 13T girls freedom on Saturday mornings including umpire development. With the limited turf options in Brisbane and some clubs having 4 or 5 teams in the junior turf competition, club teams would inevitably be split across venues each week. The draws were prepared as sympathetically as possible sharing the splits across venues while trying to ensure teams were able to access substitutes from other teams. Having SHC and BP with 2 fields helped.

Junior Grass:

2020 saw a decrease in junior teams playing in the grass competition at Downey Park on Saturday mornings. This could be due to COVID-19 but could also have been influenced by moving 13T1 to Friday nights. Teams were down in the JG and U13 age groups. Under 11 numbers increased by 1.

The grass competition had not started when COVID-19 hit. A 'paper' grading was completed scrutinising the team registration lists looking at team age and experience. This process was reasonably successful based on the information provided by clubs. A decision was made to increase the number of divisions in Under 11 to five (A-E) in an attempt to keep the play in each division as competitive as possible. The 11E competition included teams almost completely comprised of girls who played U9 in 2019 or were new to the sport.

Clubs were asked their preferences for the COVID-19 season and the consensus was for the season to still finish before the September school holidays. Draws were arranged to provide at least one full round in each division both on turf and grass. Some turf divisions needed to count games played before the COVID-19 shutdown and others were able to start their competitions afresh.

To provide teams with as much hockey as possible games in a shortened season play continued for all teams during finals. This worked well and provided a nice atmosphere on the last game day at Downey

Park. This included U7s and U9s who played right up to the finals as well. This was received positively and considerations of ways to get these young players to enjoy as much hockey as possible will be investigated for future seasons.

Another change that needed to be implemented across all junior divisions involved goal keepers. Many junior teams do not have a dedicated goal keeper and share the role to give girls a try or to just share it around. Because equipment was not able to be shared due to COVID-19 the sharing of goal keepers was not possible unless clubs could provide a dedicated kit per keeper. This meant many teams would not have a goal keeper this season. After some discussion and mainly based on safety and attempts to keep the games fair, it was decided that if either team did not have a goal keeper any penalty corners awarded were played as long corners.

Junior Carnival

The junior carnival was not able to be held in 2020 due to COVID-19 and trying to use all available weekends for competition games.

U11 Southern Cross

The U11 Southern Cross was another victim of COVID-19 this year and it was missed by many who look forward to the day in August when Downey Park is full of junior girls and boys.

Junior Umpires

Clubs umpired their own games again in 2020 except for finals. Umpire development is a club responsibility and BWHA supports this with mentors and workshops. Due to COVID-19 this was restricted this year though some junior umpires were able to be assessed and be recognised for their efforts this year.

In the finals clubs were asked to provide names of junior umpires they thought would be capable of officiating on a junior final – turf or grass. The response was disappointing and finding umpires for the finals became an onerous task that could have been much smoother had responses been received from all clubs. Umpiring finals is a recognition of a job well done throughout the season.

On behalf of the 2020 Junior Committee would like to thank the staff of the BWHA office for their assistance during the season so we could do our job to organise the junior competitions for the shortened season. We would also like to thank all the club/school officials, parents and spectators who supported so many juniors taking part in hockey for the 2020 season. We look forward to hopefully a full season of hockey in 2021.

Judy Hartnett - Junior Chair

2020 JUNIOR RESULTS

	HIGHEST GOAL SCOREF	8 University of QLD 9 Kedron Wavell 10 8 Pine Hills 20 Kedron Wavell All Hallows All Hallows Bulimba Easts 10 6 Easts 10 Arana Ascot Kedron Wavell 11 Kedron Wavell 12 Kedron Wavell 13 All Hallows 14 All Hallows 15 Arana Ascot Kedron Wavell 15 Commercial		
DIVISION	NAME	GOALS	CLUB	
JT1	Greta Gowen	10	Kedron Wavell	
JT2	Niamh de Jong	8	University of QLD	
JT3	Britt Engstrom	9	Kedron Wavell	
JT4	Caitlyn Turner	8	Pine Hills	
U13T1	Lily Punch	20	Kedron Wavell	
	Claudia Carroll		All Hallows	
U13T2	Zoe Gregoric		All Hallows	
01312	Mackenzie Hale	9	Bulimba	
	Lilah Tindall		Easts	
JG1	Rebecca Goodyear	4	All Hallows	
JG2	Amber Stafford	6	Easts	
11124	Matilda De Zilva	_	Arana Ascot	
U13A	Amber Gledhill	5	Kedron Wavell	
U13B	Sarah Howlett	4	Pine Hills	
	Esther Evans		Commercial	
U11A	Holly Williams	3	Commercial	
	Grace Missenden		Norths	
U11B	Emma Delaney	20	MBC	
U11C	Ella Rogers	9	SWU	
1111D	Kaysia Looi	10	Commercial	
U11D	Jorja Lennon	10	University of QLD	
U11E	Olivia Goodyear	7	Redcliffe	

JUNIOR MINOR PREMIERS AND PREMIERSHIP WINNERS

DIVISION	MINOR PREMIERS	PREMIERSHIP WINNERS	RUNNERS-UP
JT1	Kedron Wavell JT1	Commercial JT1	Kedron Wavell JT1
JT2	Arana Ascot JT2	Arana Ascot JT2 & Easts JT2	
JT3	Arana Ascot JT3	Arana Ascot JT3	Easts JT3
JT4	SWU JT4	SWU JT4	Pine Hills JT4
U13T1	Arana Ascot 13T1	Kedron Wavell 13T1	Arana Ascot 13T1
U13T2	All Hallows 13T2	All Hallows 13T2	Easts 13T2
JG1	All Hallows JG1	All Hallows JG1	Kedron Wavell JG1
JG2	Easts JG2	Easts JG2	Commercial JG2
U13A	Norths U13A	Norths U13A	Kedron Wavell U13A
U13B	Pine Hills U13B	Pine Hills U13B & All Hallows U13B	
U11A	Norths U11A	Norths U11A & Commercial U11A	
U11B	MBC U11B	MBC U11B	St Andrews U11B
U11C	SWU U11C	SWU U11C	All Hallows U11C
U11D	University of QLD U11D	University of QLD U11D	Commercial U11D
U11E	Redcliffe U11E	Redcliffe U11E & Valley U11E	

TAXATION SHIELD – BEST JUNIOR CLUB

Commercial

RUBY ROBINSON SHIELD – BEST JUNIOR TEAM

MBC U11B

JUNIOR POINTS TABLES 2020

* Denotes Premiership Winners

					•		•	7	T
JT1	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Kedron Wavell JT1	7	6	0	1	32	3	29	19
2	Commercial JT1 *	7	5	0	2	23	2	21	17
3	Easts JT1	7	4	1	2	18	4	14	14
4	SWU JT1	7	4	2	1	17	10	7	13
5	St Andrews JT1	7	2	4	1	8	12	-4	7
6	University of QLD JT1	7	2	4	1	9	14	-5	7
7	Norths JT1	7	0	6	1	2	28	-26	1
8	Redcliffe JT1	7	0	6	1	0	36	-36	1
	_								
JT2	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Arana Ascot JT2 *	9	8	0	1	27	3	24	25
2	Easts JT2 *	9	8	0	1	20	3	17	25
3	St Andrews JT2	9	6	2	1	25	9	16	19
4	SWU JT2	9	5	4	0	16	10	6	15
5	Commercial JT2	9	5	4	0	12	8	4	15
6	Kedron Wavell JT2	9	4	3	2	16	12	4	14
7	SBE JT2	9	3	5	1	12	12	0	10
8	Norths JT2	9	1	8	0	6	27	-21	3
9	University of QLD JT2	9	1	8	0	6	28	-22	3
10	All Hallows JT2	9	1	8	0	7	35	-28	3
				-					
JT3	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Arana Ascot JT3 *	9	7	1	1	31	8	23	22
2	Easts JT3	9	6	2	1	21	15	6	19
3	St Andrews JT3	9	5	2	2	26	10	16	17
4	Valley JT3	9	5	2	2	22	8	14	17
5	Redcliffe JT3	9	4	3	2	20	11	9	14
6	Kedron Wavell JT3	9	4	4	1	21	21	0	13
7	All Hallows JT2	9	3	3	3	21	18	3	12
8	Bulimba JT3	9	3	4	2	12	19	-7	11
9	University of QLD JT3	9	0	8	1	6	38	-32	1
10	SBE JT3	9	0	8	1	6	38	-32	1

* Denotes Premiership Winners

JT4	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	SWU JT4 *	6	5	0	1	1	17	1	16	16
2	Pine Hills JT4	6	4	0	2	1	21	0	21	14
3	Easts JT4	6	4	1	1	1	17	3	14	13
4	University of QLD JT4	6	2	4	0	1	6	13	-7	6
5	Valley JT4	6	1	3	2	1	5	11	-6	5
6	SBE JT4	6	1	4	1	1	8	17	-9	4
7	Redcliffe JT4	6	0	5	1	1	1	30	-29	1

13T1	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS
1	Arana Ascot 13T1	6	5	0	1	1	23	4	19	16
2	Kedron Wavell 13T1 *	6	5	0	1	1	28	13	15	16
3	Valley 13T1	6	2	2	2	1	5	6	-1	8
4	Commercial 13T1	6	2	3	1	1	9	11	-2	7
5	St Andrews 13T1	6	2	4	0	1	8	17	-9	6
6	Easts 13T1	6	1	4	1	1	3	10	-7	4
7	Norths 13T1	6	1	5	0	1	3	18	-15	3

13T2	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	All Hallows 13T2 *	6	5	1	0	1	27	9	18	15
2	Easts 13T2	6	5	1	0	1	21	6	15	15
3	Bulimba 13T2	6	4	2	0	1	17	5	12	12
4	SWU 13T2	6	3	2	1	1	16	12	4	10
5	University of QLD 13T2	6	1	4	1	1	3	23	-20	4
6	Norths 13T2	6	1	5	0	1	3	23	-20	3
7	Redcliffe 13T2	6	0	4	2	1	4	13	-9	2

* Denotes Premiership Winners

JG1	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	All Hallows JG1 *	7	3	0	4	7	1	6	13
2	Kedron Wavell JG1	7	3	1	3	5	2	3	12
3	Easts JG1	7	2	0	5	5	1	4	11
4	Arana Ascot JG1	7	1	3	3	2	4	-2	6
5	SWU JG1	7	0	2	5	0	4	-4	5
6	Norths JG1	7	1	4	2	4	11	-7	5

JG2	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	W	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Easts JG2 *	6	6	0	0	1	20	3	17	18
2	Commercial JG2	6	4	1	1	1	16	4	12	13
3	Pine Hills JG2	6	3	2	1	1	13	11	2	10
4	All Hallows JG2	6	2	3	1	1	5	9	-4	7
5	Kedron Wavell JG2	6	1	2	3	1	8	8	0	6
6	Valley JG2	6	0	4	2	1	3	12	-9	2
7	SWU JG2	6	0	4	2	1	1	19	-18	2

<u>U13A</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	w	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>Forfeit</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	PTS
1	Norths U13A *	7	4	1	2		10	2	8	14
2	Kedron Wavell U13A	7	4	1	2		10	6	4	14
3	Arana Ascot U13A	7	3	1	3		12	3	9	12
4	Commercial U13A	7	2	2	3		9	5	4	9
5	SBE U13A	7	1	3	2	1	2	15	-13	5
6	MBC U13A	7	0	5	2		4	16	-12	2

<u>U13B</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Pine Hills U13B *	7	3	0	4	11	3	8	13
2	All Hallows U13B *	7	3	0	4	10	4	6	13
3	Easts U13B	7	2	0	5	10	2	8	11
4	Valley U13B	7	1	3	3	1	9	-8	6
5	Kedron Wavell U13B	7	0	3	4	2	6	-4	4
6	Norths U13B	7	0	3	4	1	11	-10	4

<u>U11A</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>W</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Norths U11A *	7	4	0	3	8	0	8	15
2	Commercial U11A *	7	4	1	2	8	1	7	14
3	Easts U11A	7	2	1	4	5	3	2	10
4	Valley U11A	7	1	3	3	3	7	-4	6
5	Kedron Wavell U11A	7	1	3	3	2	8	-6	6
6	Arana Ascot U11A	7	0	4	3	1	8	-7	3

* Denotes Premiership Winners

<u>U11B</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	MBC U11B *	7	7	0	0	53	3	50	21
2	St Andrews U11B	7	4	0	3	10	4	6	16
3	Commercial U11B	7	4	3	0	11	10	1	12
4	Easts U11B	7	2	3	2	11	15	-4	8
5	Norths U11B	7	2	4	1	7	13	-6	7
6	Arana Ascot U11B	7	2	4	1	3	9	-6	7
7	Pine Hills U11B	7	1	3	3	7	14	-7	6
8	Bulimba U11B	7	1	2	4	4	9	-5	5
<u>U11C</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	SWU U11C *	7	5	0	2	25	2	3	17
2	All Hallows U11C	7	4	1	2	17	6	11	14
3	Norths U11C	7	2	2	3	5	7	-2	9
4	Valley U11C	7	1	3	3	7	13	-6	6
5	Easts U11C	7	1	4	2	3	19	-16	5
6	Kedron Wavell U11C	7	0	5	2	1	40	-39	4
<u>U11D</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	University of QLD U11D *	7	4	0	3	19	1	18	15
2	Commercial U11D	7	4	1	2	21	5	16	14
3	Arana Ascot U11D	7	2	1	4	9	5	4	10
4	MBC U11D	7	2	3	2	7	12	-5	8
5	Pine Hills U11D	7	0	3	4	2	22	-20	4
6	St Andrews U11D	7	0	4	3	1	14	-13	3
<u>U11E</u>	<u>Team</u>	<u>P</u>	<u>w</u>	<u>L</u>	<u>D</u>	<u>SF</u>	<u>SA</u>	<u>SD</u>	<u>PTS</u>
1	Redcliffe U11E *	7	5	0	2	12	1	11	17
2	Valley U11E *	7	2	3	2	2	4	-2	8
3	Commercial U11E	7	2	4	1	2	4	-2	7
4	Norths U11E	7	1	3	3	2	9	-7	6

Junior Grass – JG1, U13A, U13B, U11A, U11C & U11D played 2 practice matches which were recorded as a 0-0 draw. U11E played 1 practice match that was recorded as a 0-0 draw.

2020 JUNIOR FINAL PLACINGS

All teams in each division played on Grand Final Day for a final placing in the 2020 season

	JT1		JT2			
1 st	Commercial JT1	1 st	Arana Ascot JT2			
2 nd	Kedron Wavell JT1	2 nd	Easts JT2			
3 rd	Easts JT1	3 rd	SWU JT2			
4 th	SWU JT1	4 th	St Andrews JT2			
5 th	St Andrews JT1	5 th	Commercial JT2			
6 th	University of QLD JT1	6 th	Kedron Wavell JT2			
7 th	Redcliffe JT1	7 th	SBE JT2			
8 th	Norths JT1	8 th	Norths JT2			
		9 th	University of QLD JT2			
		10 th	All Hallows JT2			
	JT3		JT4			
1 st	Arana Ascot JT3	1 st	SWU JT4			
2 nd	Easts JT3	2 nd	Pine Hills JT4			
3 rd	St Andrews JT3	3 rd	Easts JT4			
4 th	Valley JT3	4 th	University of QLD JT4			
5 th	Redcliffe JT3	5 th	Valley JT4			
6 th	Kedron Wavell JT3	6 th	SBE JT4			
7 th	All Hallows JT3					
8 th	Bulimba JT3					
9 th	SBE JT3					
10 th	University of QLD JT3					
	13T1	13T2				
1 st	Kedron Wavell 13T1	1 st	All Hallows 13T2			
2 nd	Arana Ascot 13T1	2 nd	Easts 13T2			
3 rd	Valley 13T1	3 rd	SWU 13T2			
4 th	Commercial 13T1	4 th	Bulimba 13T2			
5 th	Easts 13T1	5 th	University of QLD 13T2			
6 th	St Andrews 13T1	6 th	Norths 13T2			
7 th	Norths 13T1	7 th	Redcliffe 13T2			
1 st	JG1 All Hallows JG1	1 st	JG2 Easts JG2			
2 nd		2 nd				
	Kedron Wavell JG1	_	Commercial JG2			
3 rd	Easts JG1	3 rd	Pine Hills JG2			
4 th	Arana Ascot JG1	4 th	All Hallows JG2			
5 th	SWU JG1	5 th	Kedron Wavell JG2			
6 th	Norths JG1	6 th	Valley JG2			
		/"	SWU JG2			

	U13A		U13B	
1 st	Norths U13A	1 st	Pine Hills U13B	
2 nd	Kedron Wavell U13A	2 nd	All Hallows U13B	
3 rd	Commercial U13A	3 rd	Easts U13B	
4 th	Arana Ascot U13A	4 th	Valley U13B	
5 th	MBC U13A	5 th	Kedron Wavell U13B	
6 th	SBE U13A	6 th	Norths U13B	
	U11A		U11B	
1 st	Norths U11A	1 st	MBC U11B	
2 nd	Commercial U11A	2 nd	St Andrews U11B	
3 rd	Easts U11A	3 rd	Commercial U11B	
4 th	Valley U11A	4 th	Easts U11B	
5 th	Kedron Wavell U11A	5 th	Norths U11B	
6 th	Arana Ascot U11A	6 th	Arana Ascot U11B	
		7 th	Pine Hills U11B	
		8 th	Bulimba U11B	
	U11C	U11D		
1 st	SWU U11C	1 st	University of QLD U11D	
2 nd	All Hallows U11C	2 nd	Commercial U11D	
3 rd	Norths U11C	3 rd	Arana Ascot U11D	
4 th	Valley U11C	4 th	MBC U11D	
5 th	Easts U11C	5 th	Pine Hills U11D	
6 th	Kedron Wavell U11C	6 th	St Andrews U11D	
	U11E			
1 st	Redcliffe U11E			
2 nd	Valley U11E			
3 rd	Commercial U11E			
4 th	Norths U11E			

U7 ROOKEY

Arana Ascot Black	Norths Owls			
Arana Ascot Red	Redcliffe Dolphins			
Bulimba	Redcliffe Sharks			
Commercial Blue	St Andrews Blue			
Commercial Purple	SWU			
Easts Tigers	University of QLD			
Kedron Wavell Red	Valley Blue			
Norths Falcons	Valley Gold			
Norths Hawks	Valley White			

U9 ROOKEY

Arana Ascot	Norths Adders	St Andrews Blue		
Bulimba	Norths Cobras	St Andrews Gold		
Commercial Blue	Norths Mambas	SWU		
Commercial Navy	Norths Pythons	University of QLD RedRoos		
Commercial Purple	Norths Taipans	University of QLD RubyRoos		
Easts Roar	Norths Vipers	Valley Blue		
Easts Tigers	Pine Hills	Valley Gold		
Kedron Wavell Blue	Redcliffe Dolphins	Valley White		
Kedron Wavell Red	Redcliffe Sharks			
MBC Bees	SBE			

^{*}U7 & U9 do not play for points

2020 HOCKEY QUEENSLAND REPRESENTATIVE PLAYERS

2020 U15 SQUAD - FOR 2021 TEAM SELECTION

Kailei Bowers – St Andrews
Montana Carr – Commercial
Madeline Casey – Kedron Wavell
Penelope Ferguson – Easts
Eleanor Holmes – St Andrews
Ellie Kendall – Commercial
Mia Newbold – Kedron Wavell
Sophia Papantoniou – Commercial
Lily Richardson – Easts
Amelia Wilson – Easts

Kara Bradley – Arana Ascot
Jazelle Carter – Kedron Wavell
Amy Chiu Chong – Commercial
Georgia Harris – Arana Ascot
Mihaylia Howell – St Andrews
Anastasia Long – Easts
Alexa Nguyen – Arana Ascot
Lara Pyle – Arana Ascot
Karissa van der Wath – Commercial
Trinity Woodward – Commercial

2020 QUEENSLAND SCHOOL SPORT REPRESENTATIVE PLAYERS

10-12 YEARS GIRLS HOCKEY MERIT TEAM

Mackenzie Hale – Met East (Bulimba) Chloe D'Hage – Met East (Valley) Elke Cooper – Met North (Commercial) Lily Punch – Met North (Kedron Wavell) Bless Daly – Met North (Kedron Wavell)
Karla Rimmington – Met North (St Andrews)
Addison Free – Met East (St Andrews)

13-16 YEARS GIRLS HOCKEY MERIT TEAM

Lauren Deldot – Met East (Easts)

Karissa van der Wath – Met East (Commercial)

Madyson Jones – Met North (Kedron Wavell)

Peppa Carter – Met West (Kedron Wavell)

Grace Vermeer – Met West (University)

Mihaylia Howell – Sunshine Coast (St Andrews)

Amity Humphries – Met East (Commercial)
Eliza White – Met East (St Andrews)
Ellie Kendall – Met North (Commercial)
Hayley Petersen – Met Wet (Easts)
Georgina West – Met West (Kedron Wavell)
Olivia Elphick, Umpire – Met East (SBE)

17-19 YEARS GIRLS HOCKEY MERIT TEAM

Zali Gough – Met East (SQH)

Courtney Davis – Met North (Kedron Wavell)

Jane Ramsay – Met West (Easts)

Lily-Kate Charles – Met North (Norths) Stella Harris – Met West (Easts)

BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2020.

CONTENTS

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT	Page 2
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE	Page 3 – 5
BALANCE SHEET	Page 6 - 7
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS	Page 8
NOTE TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS	Page 9 – 11
AUDITORS REPORT	Page 12 - 13

BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT

On behalf of the Management Committee I present their Report on the Accounts of the Association for the year ended 30 September, 2020.

The following persons hold office at the date of this report:

Karin Walduck (President), Christine Blanchard (Vice President), Sonya Fisher (Treasurer), Kathleen Proctor (General Manager/Secretary), Lesley Bennett, Di Brodie, Bronwyn Morris, Sue Reid, Kellie Roberts.

ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the association are to organise, plan, administer and otherwise arrange activities associated with the playing of hockey by the female population of Brisbane and surrounding areas.

RESULTS

The activities of the Association for the year ended 30 September 2020 resulted in a loss from operations of \$14,944.57 (after providing for depreciation of building and equipment).

STATEMENT BY THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the Management Committee

- The Statement of Income and Expenditure gives a true and fair view of the deficit of the association for the year ended 30 September 2020.
- The Balance Sheet gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association as at September 2020.
- As at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

Signed this 30th day of October of 2020 in accordance with a resolution of the Management Committee.

Karin Walduck President Sonya Fisher Treasurer

BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC. PROFIT & LOSS 2019 V 2020

Account Description		2020		2019
INCOME				
Affiliations	\$	8,581.78	\$	8,754.56
Senior Turf Players	\$	89,208.18	\$	149,954.99
Senior Grass Players	\$	31,300.00	\$	62,751.37
Junior Players	\$	90,328.20	\$	129,505.43
Dual Secondary Registrations	\$	7,213.68	\$	12,000.00
Jnr & Snr Players	\$	12,831.81	\$	20,701.85
Casual Players	\$	4,747.74	\$	14,224.12
U7 Players	\$	7,181.81	\$	14,372.72
U9 Players	\$	13,977.29	\$	26,490.91
Summer Six-a-Side	\$	5,454.58	\$	4,226.87
Summer Mixed	\$	5,336.35	\$	9,418.19
Summer Masters	\$	8,590.87	\$	5,981.77
Senior Turf Games	\$	240,109.80	\$	409,015.17
Umpires Levy	\$	29,815.90	\$	76,494.46
Grants	\$	474,481.06	\$	63,161.35
MDM Assistance	\$	3,000.00	\$	13,000.00
COVID Assistance	Ś	143,922.67	7	,
Event Fundraising	*	2 10,522101	\$	411.00
Donations	\$	893.69	\$	3,500.00
Interest	Ś	5,294.72	\$	10,580.70
Sale of Equipment		5,254.72	Ś	1,500.00
Misc	\$	84.50		1,500.00
Tours Income	\$	2,120.30	\$	184,271.84
Bar Sales	ş	2,212.23	\$	10,032.62
Canteen Sales	\$	22,946.37	\$	89,307.11
Workshops/Courses/Programs	Ś	18,804.61	\$	28,131.58
Fines & Forfeits	\$	788.64	\$	2,692.72
Rentals	\$	1,604.54	\$	2,900.86
Fields & Flood Lights	\$	5,669.09	\$	7,338.77
_	\$	391.81	\$	28,027.36
Apparel & Merchandise				9,752.72
Schools	\$	7,109.08	\$	1,500.00
PDM & TV Income	\$ \$	1,500.00	\$ \$	
TOTAL INCOME	•	1,245,501.30	>	1,400,001.04
EXPENSES				
Bank Charges (no GST)	\$	28.20	\$	172.00
Audit Fees	\$	2,000.00	\$	2,000.00
Insurance	\$	26,290.91	\$	25,399.99
Bank Charges (with GST)	\$	1,864.86	\$	1,753.53
GST Adjustment	\$	0.06	.\$	1,755.55
Bar Purchases	\$		-> \$	7,550.72
		2,769.78	\$	
Canteen Purchases	\$ \$ \$	14,034.65		36,761.66
Waste & Spoilage	\$	510.88	\$	255.75
Security		1,610.01	\$	1,874.37
Waste	\$	722.27	\$	1,581.39

Admin Misc	\$	56.60	\$	137.89
Electricity	\$	7,806.15	\$	14,202.44
Cleaning	\$	4,714.01	\$	8,402.52
Educations	\$	2,128.60	\$	5,693.64
Awards	\$	832.15	\$	10,322.16
Lease - Land	-\$	4,594.47	\$	6,720.00
Lease - Equipment		7,687.72	\$	4,179.62
Licences	Š	365.10	\$	1,244.95
Rates	\$ \$ \$	13,485.41	\$	27,194.48
Equipment	Š	4,597.38	\$	7,178.24
Professional Development	\$	1,621.38	\$	975.24
Stationery	\$	3,071.21	\$	3,798.31
Amenities	\$	745.54	\$	1,885.77
Postage	\$	377.45	\$	181.19
Photocopying	\$ \$	2,144.78	\$	4,599.17
Phone - Rentals	\$	687.10	\$	375.55
Phone - Calls	\$	3,515.46	Ş	3,709.00
Phone - Mobiles	\$	840.00	\$	1,310.00
Directory Charges	\$	2,801.35	\$	2,422.60
Computer - Software	\$	1,864.02	\$	1,565.08
Computer - Hardware Install	\$	1,022.00	\$	652.00
Internet	\$	1,868.23	\$	2,323.72
Computer - Maintenance	\$	9,479.66	\$	7,645.00
HQ Affiliations	\$	500.00	\$	500.00
Turf Hire - Training	\$	6,359.07	\$	13,754.55
Turf Hire - Fixtures	\$	159,443.81	\$	277,531.20
Summer Six-a-side	\$	3,660.01	\$	2,912.73
Summer Mixed	\$	3,939.98	\$	6,141.81
Summer Masters	\$	5,014.56	\$	4,505.47
Salary & Wages	\$	175,246.30	\$	216,829.46
Hobby Payments	\$	55,212.21	\$	79,863.60
Casual/Part Time	\$	106,666.50	\$	129,149.38
Annual Leave Provision	-\$	11,738.63	\$	185.62
Tech Bench & Control Room	\$	16,543.25	\$	28,451.00
Superannuation	\$	21,278.63	\$	27,120.49
Workers Compensation	\$	2,534.11	\$	3,590.82
AASC & Hook in 2 Hockey Coaches	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	5,888.35	\$	7,277.13
LSL - Provision	-\$	1,551.92	\$	10,520.73
Repairs	\$	2,580.43	\$	11,473.90
Maintenance	\$	7,620.98	\$	11,898.56
Services (Contract)	\$	16,753.55	\$	19,055.53
Vehicle Expenses	\$	3,920.83	\$	11,210.61
Advertising	\$	267.54	\$	772.47
Promotions			\$	1,628.94
TV & Broadcasting	\$	14,540.00	\$	22,144.95
Tours - Transport	\$	6,222.73	\$	63,281.95
Tours - Accommodation	\$	4,250.26	\$	97,086.13
Tours - Uniform Levy			\$	2,363.64
Tours - Allowances & Misc	\$	3.65	\$	8,343.91
Merchandise	\$	2,488.40	\$	19,205.51
Team Photos			\$	5,929.91

SURPLUS/DEFICIT AFTER PROVISIONS & RESERVES	(\$	14,944.57)	\$	11,807.21
TRANSFER TO RESERVE			-\$	20,000.00
PROVISIONS				
NETT PROFIT/(LOSS)	(\$	14,944.57)	\$	31,807.21
TOTAL EXPENSES	\$	1,260,445.87	\$	1,368,193.83
Depreciation Expense	\$	42,532.00	\$	55,840.00
Grant - Expenditure	\$	492,822.64	\$	26,315.96
BWHA Functions	\$	498.18	\$	191.82
Event Nominations			\$	9,050.00

BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC. BALANCE SHEET - SEPTEMBER 2020

Account	Description		2020		2019
	CURRENT ASSETS				
8150.00	Bank of Qld Account	\$	148,965.63	\$	69,607.85
8155.00	Bank of Qld - Expense Account	\$	1,500.00	\$	1,500.00
8160.00	HB - No Interest Loan			\$	5,000.00
8170.00	BHMG - No Interest Loan			\$	100,000.00
8200.00	Petty Cash	\$	250.00	\$	250.00
8400.00	Debtors	\$	716.00		
8450.05	Bar Stock	\$	64.07	\$	501.46
8460.05	Canteen Stock	\$	544.48	\$	3,411.51
8480.07	Merchandise	\$	42,938.76	\$	11,166.23
8620.00	Grant Retention	\$	26,605.33		
8625.00	Grant Web Saver Acc - 22827578	\$	20,818.11	\$	145,060.71
8630.00	BQ Web Savings Account	\$	200,767.42	\$	332,464.33
8640.00	Turf Fund	\$	201,458.33	\$	234,131.58
8700.00	Pre-Payments	\$	11,189.53	\$	13,215.58
	TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	\$	655,817.66	\$	916,309.25
	NON-CURRENT ASSETS				
5001.00	Constructed Non-Financial Asset	\$	577,000.00		
5002.00	Buildings at Cost	\$	561,222.20	\$	561,222.20
5003.00	Plant & Equipment	\$	669,443.01	\$	663,041.65
5009.00	Accumulated Dep - Plant & Eqp	-\$	536,402.21	-\$	506,796.21
5010.00	Accumulated Dep - Buildings	-\$	483,414.00	-\$	470,488.00
5011.00	HB- No Interest Loan	\$	5,000.00		
5012.00	BHMG - No Interest Loan	\$	100,000.00		
	TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS	\$	892,849.00	\$	246,979.64
	TOTAL ASSETS	\$	1,548,666.66	\$ 1	,163,288.89
	CURRENT LIABILITIES				
9300.00	Income Received in Advance	\$	8,104.53	\$	147,821.79
9400.00	Accruals	\$	88,561.85	\$	30,116.93
9500.00	Provision for Tournaments	\$	10,748.37	\$	10,748.37
9525.00	Provision for Uniforms	-\$	813.23	\$	2,301.54
	Provision for Annual Leave	\$	11,498.73	\$	23,237.36
9560.00 9580.00		\$	44,791.51	\$	
9300.00	Provision for Long Service Leave TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES	\$		\$	46,343.43 260,569.42
	TOTAL CORRENT LIABILITIES	>	162,891.76	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	200,509.42
	NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			-	
	TOTAL LIABILITIES	\$	162,891.76	\$	260,569.42
	NET ASSETS	\$	1,385,774.90	\$	902,719.47

	TOTAL CAPITAL & RESERVES	\$	1,385,774.90	\$ 902,719.47
	Current Year Profits	-\$	14,944.57	\$ 11,807.21
9994.00	Constructed Non-Financial (Grant)	\$	498,000.00	
9993.00	Contributed Assets (BCC)	\$	148,957.00	\$ 148,957.00
9992.00	Feasibility Study Reserve	\$	1,676.53	\$ 1,676.53
9991.00	Future Capital Expense Reserve	\$	37,872.32	\$ 37,872.32
9990.00	Acc Funds - Retained Earnings	\$	714,213.62	\$ 702,406.41
	CAPITAL AND RESERVES			

BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2020

Cash flows from operating activities	2019	2020
Receipts from players	1,044,048	451,531
Receipts from donations and govt assistance	16,500	147,815
Receipts from PDM and TV	1,500	1,500
Bar/Canteen Net Income	43,472	8,356
Payment for Player Facilities and Tours	(486,727)	(278,200)
Payments to Employees & on costs	(376,688)	(305,724)
Payments for PDM and TV	(22,145)	(14,540)
Payments for Operating Costs	(197,390)	(131,091)
Net cash from (used) on operating activities	22,570	(120,353)
Cash flows from investing activities		
Sale of Equipment	1,500	0
Purchase of Equipment	(29,966)	(6,401)
Grants Received	44,011	411,709
Interest Received	10,580	5,295
Loan Money – BHMG Inc	(100,000)	0
Grant Expended	(26,316)	(499,503)
Net Cash from (used) on investing activities	(100,191)	(88,900)
Net decrease in cash held Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year	(77,621)	(209,253)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of	860,833	783,012
financial year	783,012	<u>573,759</u>
Cash and Cash Equivalents		
Web Saver – Female Facility Grant	145,060	20,818
Bank of Queensland	69,607	148,966
Expense Account	1,500	1,500
Petty Cash	250	250
Web Saver	332,464	200,767
Turf Fund	234,131	201,459
	783,012	573,759

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Accounts For the year ended 30 September 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting requirements of the Association Incorporations Act. The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity.

The report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act and the following Australian Accounting Standards:

AASB 112: Income Taxes AASB 1031: Materiality

ASB 110: Events after the Balance Sheet Date

No other Australian Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations or other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs and does not take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets.

The following specific accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are brought to account at cost, less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the management committee to ensure that it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flow that will be received from the assets' employment and subsequent disposal. The net expected cash flows have not been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

(b) Inventories

Inventories of trading stock held for future use are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(c) Income Tax

Income derived by the Association is exempt from income tax in accordance with section 50-20 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(d) Provisions

Adequate provision is made in the Financial Accounts to cover future liability for-

Tournaments \$10748 Uniforms (\$ 813) Employee Benefits \$56290

The provisions are reviewed annually and adjusted as required.

(e) Reserves

Reserves are created from specific purpose bequests and from current earnings.

Future Capital Expenses – to cover property improvements

Feasibility Study – in relation to ongoing costs

	2019	2020
Note 2: Cash		
Cash at bank and on hand	71,357	150,715
Note 3: Receivables		
Current: Trade debtors	0	0
Note 4: Inventories		
Trading stock (Bar, Canteen & Merchandise)	15,079	43,547
Note 5: Investments		
Bank of Queensland – Term deposits	711,655	423,045
,		
Note 6: Property, plant and equipment		
Buildings	561,222	1,138,222
Accumulated depreciation	-470,488	-483,414
Net buildings	90,734	654,808
,		
Plant and Ground equipment	663,041	669,443
Accumulated depreciation	-506,796	-536,402
Net Plant and equipment	156,245	133,041
Total Property, plant and equipment	246,979	787,849

Note 7: Buildings

During 2020 \$577,000 was expended on the construction of a new amenities block on Noble Street of which \$498,000 was provided from a State Government Grant, and \$79,000 spent from BWHA funds. The field 10 building is shown in the Non-Current Assets as a "Constructed Non-Financial Asset" with a corresponding "Value Of Constructed Non-Financial Asset" shown in the Capital and Reserves — for the amount of grant funds provided. The Building is on land owned by local authorities, leased to BWHA. The BWHA has no right of recovery of this amount in the event of a termination of the lease. BWHA has a recuring 4 year lease, which will continue for the foreseeable future. BWHA is responsible for the maintenance and care of the building as part of the requirements of the lease.

The historical "Buildings at Cost" are shown as a Non-Current Asset in the Balance Sheet at a written down value of \$654,808, to reflect the original cost to the Association, and to expend that cost by way of a Depreciation charge annually charged against current income. As the Buildings are on land owned by local authorities, the BWHA has no right of recovery of this amount in the event of termination of leases. BWHA has a recuring 4 year lease, and see no reason for this to not continue.

All buildings that are reflected in the Depreciation Schedule are currently used for activities conducted by BWHA. The depreciation for buildings is set at 40 years of life or 2.5%pa.

Note 8: Investments		
Brisbane Hockey Management Group (Loan)	100,000	100,000
Hockey Brisbane (Loan)	5,000	5,000
	105,000	105,000
Note 9: Current Liabilities		
Creditors and accruals	30,116	89,561
Provision for tournaments	10,748	10,748
Provision for uniforms	2,301	(813)
Income received in advance	147,821	8,104
Provision for annual leave	23,237	11,499
Provision for long service leave	46,343	44,792

Note10: Transfer to Reserve

An amount has been set aside from current earnings as a Future Capital Expense Reserve to be used to develop facilities at Downey Park, F10.

260,569

2019	2020		
37.872	37.872		

163,891

Note 10: Related Party Transactions

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions unless otherwise stated.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BRISBANE WOMEN'S HOCKEY ASSOCIATION INC.

Report on the financial report

I have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc., which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 30 September 2020, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Committee of Management Statement.

The responsibility of the Committee of Management for the financial report

The Committee of Management of the entity are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements which form part of the financial report are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of the entity and are appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The Committee of Management's responsibility also includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on my audit. I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian auditing standards. Those auditing standards require that I comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Committee of Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the Committee of Management's financial reporting responsibilities under the Rules of the Association. I disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report to which it relates to any person other than the members, or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to Note 1 to the Financial Report which describes the basis of accounting. As a result, the Financial Report may not be suitable for another purpose.

Independence

In conducting the audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Electronic publication of the audited financial report

It is my understanding that the Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc. intends to electronically present the audited financial report and auditor's report on its internet site. Responsibility for the electronic presentation of the financial report on the Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc. website is that of those charged with governance of the Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc. The security and controls over information on the website should be addressed by the Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc. to maintain the integrity of the data presented. The examination of the controls over the electronic presentation of audited financial report on the Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc. website is beyond the scope of the audit report.

Auditor's opinion

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Brisbane Women's Hockey Association Inc. as of 30 September 2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

Donald John Munro FCPA

BRISBANE

30/10/2020



WITH THANKS TO OUR SPONSORS & AFFILIATES



Australian Government















PHOTOS BY HPB - HOCKEY PHOTOS BRISBANE